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LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTWE OFFICER

To Our Shareholders and Customers

We are pleased to present
the Annual Report to Shareholders of Cheviot Financial Corp the

Corporation the holding company which owns lOO% of the outstanding stock of Cheviot Savings Bank

the Bank This is the fifth annual report to reflect the consolidated results of operations and financial

condition of the Corporation and Bank

The Corporation reported net earnings of $1.4 million for 2008 and ended the year with assets of

$332.0 million

The mission of Cheviot Savings Bank has always been to offer the best financial services and

products with the expertise and friendliness customer wants During these difficult economic times

Cheviot Savings Bank continues to offer superior financial services coupled with the superior financial

strength necessary to prosper in this market We adhere to our conservative lending and investment practices

which we believe will help the Corporation to maintain its financial strength during this current recession

The Directors Management and employees of Cheviot Savings
Bank are committed to the

community Through our Charitable Foundation numerous contributions have been awarded in the past
five

years During this time the Foundation has awarded over $485000 in support of the local community The

contribution we are most proud of is the college tuition grants
which have totaled over $200000 to 10

different high schools

want to personally thank you for
your support as shareholder and pledge to continue to advance

the interests of the Corporation the Bank the community our customers and shareholders

Sincerely

Cheviot Financial Corp

By_______
Thomas Linneman

President and Chief Executive Officer



Cheviot Financial Corp

BUSINESS OF CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP

Cheviot Savings Bank the Savings Bank was established in 1911 as an Ohio chartered mutual savings and

loan association As an Ohio-chartered savings association the Savings Bank is subject to the regulation and

supervision of the Ohio Department of Financial Institutions and the Office of Thrift Supervision

In 2004 the Savings Bank reorganized into two-tier mutual holding company structure the

Reorganization and established Cheviot Financial Corp Cheviot Financial or the Corporation as the

parent
of the Savings Bank Pursuant to the Plan Cheviot Financial issued 9918751 common shares of

which approximately 55.O% was issued to Cheviot Mutual Holding Company federally chartered mutual

holding company Cheviot Financial sold 4388438 common shares representing approximately 44.0% of

the outstanding common stock to the Savings Banks depositors and newly formed Employee Stock

Ownership Plan ESOP at an initial issuance price of $10.00 per share In addition 75000 shares or

approximately one percent
of the outstanding shares were issued to charitable foundation established by

the Savings Bank Cheviot Financials issuance of common shares resulted in proceeds net of offering costs

and shares issued to the ESOP totaling $39.3 million At December 31 2008 Cheviot Financial had

3417191 shares issued and outstanding to persons
other than Cheviot Mutual Holding Company

The
Savings

Bank is community and customer-oriented savings and loan operating six full-service offices

all of which are located in Hamilton County Ohio which we consider our primary market area We

emphasize personal service and customer convenience in serving the financial needs of the individuals

families and businesses residing in our markets

Cheviot Financials executive offices are located at 3723 Glenmore Avenue Cheviot Ohio 45211-4744 and

our telephone number is 513 661-0457

The following are highlights of Cheviot Savings Banks operations

97-year history of providing financial products and services to individuals families and small

business customers in southwestern Ohio

commitment to single family residential mortgage lending

maintaining capital strength and exceeding regulatory well capitalized capital requirements and

business
strategy designed to expand our banking relationships with existing and future customers



Cheviot Financial Corp

SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

The following tables set forth selected financial and other data of Cheviot Financial Corp at the dates and for

the periods presented

At December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

In thousands

Selected Financial Condition Data

Total assets $332000 $319060 $309780 $291791 $276587

Cash and cash equivalents 10013 9450 5490 9103 7725

Investment securities available for sale 23909 12178 9085

Investment securities held to maturity at cost 7000 23000 25099 27084 27102

Mortgage-backed securities available for sale 648 814 1042 1269 1483

Mortgage-backed securities held to maturityat cost 6915 9500 14237 20285 29204

Loans receivable net 268483 249832 241178 222711 203842

Deposits 216048 219526 205450 181238 179989

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 44604 28665 29236 33209 16199

Shareholders equity
68231 67920 72200 74810 77940

For the Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in thousands except per
share data

Selected Operating Data

Totalinterestincome $18058 $17791 $16509 $14408 $12983

Total interest expense .2A22 ...L22 .i.122

Net interest income 9613 8292 8727 9279 9102

Provision for losses on loans ..jjf ..2

Net interest income after
provision

for

losses on loans 8945 8176 8702 9182 9102

Total other income 503 545 538 445 270

Total general administrative and other

expense
7.367 ..22Q ..S.41B _ll.28

Earnings
before income taxes 2008 1354 2470 3209 2404

Federal income taxes ._42a 22 LQ LQIt

Net earnings
$4

Earnings per
share basic and diluted $4 $a

Includes loans held for sale net of allowance for loan losses and deferred loan costs



Cheviot Financial Corp

SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA CONTINUED

At or For the

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Selected Financial Ratios and Other DataP

Performance Ratios

Return on
average

assets 0.43% 0.29% 0.56% 0.76% 0.48%

Return on average equity
2.09 1.33 2.32 2.79 1.72

Average equity
to

average
assets 20.75 22.16 24.21 27.17 27.91

Equity to total assets at end of
period

20.55 21.29 23.31 25.64 28.18

Interest rate spread 2.49 2.00 2.27 2.72 2.85

Net interest margin 3.11 2.78 3.03 3.39 3.39

Average interest-bearing asset to
average

interest-bearing liabilities 122.59 124.51 128.42 135.63 137.59

Total general administrative and other expenses

to average total assets 2.28 2.34 2.24 2.26 2.53

Efficiency ratio 73.55 83.37 73.07 66.00 74.35

Dividend payout ratio 225.00 320.00 155.56 109.09 142.86

Asset Quality Ratios

Nonperforming loans as
percent

of total

loans 0.69 0.26 0.12 0.07 0.12

Nonperforming assets as
percent

of total

assets 0.88 0.40 0.09 0.08 0.12

Allowance for loan losses as
percent

of total

loans 0.26 0.24 0.35 0.36 0.36

Allowance for loan losses as percent of

nonperforming assets 24.36 46.39 296.44 339.50 214.66

Regulatory Capital Ratios

Tangible capital 16.84 16.75 16.60 16.70 21.07

Core capital
16.84 16.75 16.60 16.70 21.07

Risk-based capital 32.53 32.67 33.29 34.90 47.08

Number of

Bankingoffices

With the exception of end of period ratios all ratios are based on average monthly balances during the periods

Interest rate spread represents
the difference between the weighted-average yield on interest-earning assets and the

weighted-average rate on interest-bearing liabilities Net interest margin represents net interest income as

percentage of average interest_earning assets

Efficiency ratio represents the ratio of general administrative and other expenses divided by the sum of net interest

income and total other income

Nonperforming loans consist of non-accrual loans and accruing loans greater than 150 days delinquent while

nonperforming assets consist of nonperforming loans and real estate acquired through foreclosure



Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis reflects Cheviot Financials financial statements and other relevant statistical data

and is intended to enhance your understanding of our consolidated financial condition and results of

operations You should read the information in this section in conjunction
with Cheviot Financials

consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in this Annual Report The preparation
of

financial statements involves the application of accounting policies relevant to the business of Cheviot

Financial Certain of Cheviot Financials accounting policies are important to the portrayal of Cheviot

Financials financial condition since they require management to make difficult complex or subjective

judgments some of which may relate to matters that are inherently uncertain Estimates associated with

these policies are susceptible to material changes as result of changes in facts and circumstances Facts and

circumstances which could affect these judgments include but without limitation changes in interest rates in

the performance of the economy or in the financial condition of borrowers

General

Our results of operations are dependent primarily on net interest income which is the difference between the

interest income earned on our loans and securities and our cost of funds consisting
of the interest paid on

deposits
and borrowings Results of operations are also affected by the provision

for losses on loans loan

sales and servicing activities and service charges and fees collected on our loan and deposit accounts Our

general administrative and other expense primarily consists of employee compensation and benefits

advertising expense data processing expense other operating expenses
and federal income taxes Results of

operations are also significantly affected by general economic and competitive conditions particularly changes

in interest rates government policies
and actions of regulatory authorities

Critical Accounting Policies

We consider accounting policies involving significant judgments and assumptions by management that have

or could have material impact on the carrying value of certain assets or on income to be critical accounting

policies
We consider the accounting method used for the allowance for loan losses to be critical

accounting policy

The allowance for loan losses is the estimated amount considered necessary to cover inherent but

unconfirmed credit losses in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date The allowance is established

through the provision for losses on loans which is charged against income In determining the allowance for

loan losses management makes significant estimates and has identified this policy as one of the most critical

accounting policies for Cheviot Financial

Management performs quarterly
evaluation of the allowance for loan losses Consideration is given to

variety of factors in establishing this estimate including but not limited to current economic conditions

delinquency statistics geographic and industry concentrations the adequacy of the underlying collateral the

financial strength of the borrower results of internal loan reviews and other relevant factors This evaluation

is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant change



Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Critical Accounting Policies continued

The analysis has two components specific and general
allocations Specific percentage

allocations can be

made for unconfirmed losses related to loans that are determined to be impaired Impairment is measured by

determining
the

present
value of expected future cash flows or for collateral-dependent loans the fair value

of the collateral adjusted for market conditions and selling expenses If the fair value of the loan is less than

the loans carrying value charge-off is recorded for the difference The general allocation is determined by

segregating
the remaining loans by type

of loan risk weighting if applicable and payment history We also

analyze historical loss experience delinquency trends general economic conditions and geographic and

industry concentrations This analysis establishes factors that are applied to the loan groups to determine the

amount of the general reserve Actual loan losses may be significantly more than the allowances we have

established which could result in material negative effect on our financial results

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements which can be identified by the use of such words as

estimate project believe intend anticipate plan seek expect
and similar expressions These forward-looking

statements include

statements of our goals intentions and expectations

statements regarding our business plans and prospects and growth and operating strategies

statements regarding the asset quality of our loan and investment portfolios and

estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits

These forward-looking statements are subject to significant risks assumptions and uncertainties including

among other things the following important factors that could affect the actual outcome of future events

significantly
increased competition among depository and other financial institutions

inflation and changes in the interest rate environment that reduce our margins or reduce the fair value of

financial instruments

general economic conditions either nationally or in our market areas which are worse than expected

adverse changes in the securities markets

legislative or regulatory changes that adversely affect our business

our ability
to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth opportunities

changes in consumer spending borrowing and savings habits

changes in accounting policies and practices as may be adopted by the bank regulatory agencies the

Financial Accounting Standards Board and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and

changes in our organization compensation and benefit plans

Because of these and other uncertainties our actual future results may be materially different from the results

anticipated by these forward-looking statements
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table
presents

the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes
in the volume of

interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected our interest income and interest expense

during the periods indicated Information is provided in each category
with

respect
to changes

attributable to changes in volume changes in volume multiplied by prior rate ii changes attributable to

changes in rate changes in rate multiplied by prior volume and iii the net change The changes attributable

to the combined impact of volume and rate have been allocated proportionately to the changes due to

volume and the changes due to rate

Year ended December 31

2008 vs 2007 2007 vs 2006

Increase Increase

decrease decrease

due to due to

Net Net

Volume Rate Change Volume Rate Change

In thousands

Interest earnings assets

Loans receivable net $857 428 429 $801 $192 993

Mortgage-backed securities 215 14 229 283 138 145

Investment securities 18 191 209 167 303 470

Interest-earning assets .4 .i4 ..142 .Q3 .JI _-i

Total interest-earning assets 664 397 267 652 630 1282

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits
113 1452 1339 581 1180 1761

FHLB advances 147 25 li _44
Total interest-bearing liabilities L99 LQ4 L124 1217

Increase decrease in net interest income $fl9 $129 $L4 $4

-8-



Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

At December 31 2008 Cheviot Financial had total assets of $332.0 million an increase of $12.9 million or

4.1% from the $319.1 million total at December 31 2007 The increase in total assets reflects an increase in

the loan portfolio totaling $18.7 million which was partially funded by the increase in advances from the

Federal Home Loan Bank of $15.9 million

Cash federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits in other financial institutions totaled $10.0 million at

December 31 2008 an increase of $563000 or 6.0% from $9.5 million at December 31 2007 Investment

securities totaled $30.9 miffion at December 31 2008 decrease of $4.3 million or 12.1% from $35.2 million

at December 31 2007 During the year ended December 31 2008 investment securities purchases consisted

of $19.0 million of U.S Government agency obligations which were partially offset by $23.0 million of

maturities

Mortgage-backed securities totaled $7.6 million at December 31 2008 decrease of $2.8 million or 26.7%

from $10.3 million at December 31 2007 The decrease in mortgage-backed securities was due to $2.7

million of principal repayments

Loans receivable including loans held for sale totaled $268.5 million at December 31 2008 an increase of

$18.7 million or 7.5% from $249.8 million at December 31 2007 The increase resulted from loan

originations of $69.6 million which were partially offset by loan repayments
of $45.6 miffion and loans sales

of $3.8 million Growth in the loan portfolio
consisted primarily of $17.9 million increase in loans secured

by one- to four-family residential real estate The change in the composition of the Corporations assets

reflects managements decision to take advantage of opportunities to obtain higher rate of return from the

origination of loans Cheviot Savings Bank will sell selected one- to four-family residential fixed-rate loans to

the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati Loans sold and serviced totaled $9.6 million at December 31

2008 There were approximately $729000 of loans held for sale in our loan portfolio at December 31 2008

At December 31 2008 the allowance for loan losses totaled $709000 or 0.26% of net loans compared to

$596000 or 0.24% of net loans at December 31 2007 In determining the appropriate
level of our allowance

for loan losses at any point in time management and the board of directors apply systematic process

focusing on the risk of loss in the portfolio First the loan portfolio is segregated by loan
types

to be

evaluated collectively and loan types to be evaluated individually Delinquent multi-family and commercial

loans are evaluated individually for potential impairments in their carrying value Second the allowance for

loan losses entails utilizing our five
year

historic loss experience by applying
such loss percentage to the loan

types to be collectively evaluated in the portfolio The $668000 provision for losses on loans during the year

ended December 31 2008 is reflection of these factors weaker economic conditions in the greater

Cincinnati area an increase in delinquent loans and the charge-off of specific loans totaling $572000 The

five year historic loss experience has increased from prior years which has caused the allowance for loan loss

as percentage
of loans to increase The analysis of the allowance for loan losses requires an element of

judgment and is subject to the possibility that the allowance may need to be increased with corresponding

reduction in earnings To the best of managements knowledge all known and inherent losses that are

probable and that can be reasonably estimated have been recorded at December 31 2008

-9-



Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 continued

Nonperforming and impaired loans totaled $1.8 million at December 31 2008 compared to $660000 at

December 31 2007 At December 31 2008 nonperforming loans were comprised of loans secured by one-

to four-family residential real estate The allowance for loan losses totaled 38.4% and 90.3% of

nonperforming loans at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Based on individual analyses of these

loans management believes that the Corporations allowance for loan losses conforms to generally accepted

accounting principles based upon the available facts and circumstances there can be no assurance that

additions to the allowance will not be
necessary

in future periods which would adversely affect our results of

operations Although management believes that the allowance for loan losses conforms with generally

accepted accounting principles based upon the available facts and circumstances there can be no assurance

that additions to the allowance will not be
necessary

in future periods which would adversely affect our

results of operations

Deposits totaled $216.0 million at December 31 2008 decrease of $3.5 million or 1.6% from $219.5

million at December 31 2007 The decrease in deposits consisted of $14.1 million decrease in certificates of

deposits which was partially offset by an increase in demand transaction and passbook accounts of $10.6

million

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati increased by $15.9 million or 55.6% to total of

$44.6 million at December 31 2008 The use of FHLB advances as funding source reflected the ability to

use lower cost of funds to fund loan originations

Shareholders equity totaled $68.2 million at December 31 2008 $311000 or 0.5% increase from

December 31 2007 The increase in shareholders equity resulted primarily from net earnings of $1.4 million

which was partially offset by purchases of our common stock totaling $725000 under our stock repurchase

plan and the payment of dividends of $1.2 million paid during 2008

Cheviot Savings Bank is required to maintain minimum regulatory capital pursuant to federal regulations At

December 31 2008 Cheviot Savings Banks regulatory capital substantially exceeded all minimum regulatory

capital requirements

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

General

Cheviot Financials net earnings totaled $1.4 million for the
year

ended December 31 2008 an increase of

$490000 or 52.9% compared to the net earnings recorded for the year
ended December 31 2007 The

increase in net earnings reflects $1.3 million increase in net interest income which was partially
offset by

$42000 decrease in other income $73000 increase in general administrative and other expenses and an

increase in the provision for federal income taxes of $164000

10



Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Yeat ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

continued

Interest Income

Total interest income for the year
ended December 31 2008 totaled $18.1 million an increase of $267000

or 1.5% compared to the
year

ended December 31 2007 The increase in interest income reflects the impact

of an increase of $10.9 million or 3.6% in the average balance of interest-earning assets outstanding during

the year
ended December 31 2008 as compared to the

year
ended December 31 2007 which was partially

offset by decrease of 12 basis points
in the

average yield to 5.84% from 5.96%

Interest income on loans increased by $429000 or 2.9% for the year ended December 31 2008 The

increase in interest income on loans reflects $14.4 million or 5.8% increase in the average
balance

outstanding during 2008 which was partially offset by decrease of 17 basis points in the average yield to

5.92% Interest income on mortgage-backed securities decreased by $229000 or 33.O% during the year

ended December 31 2008 due primarily to decrease in the average balance outstanding
of $3.9 million and

decrease in the
average yield of 11 basis points from 2007 Interest income on investment securities

increased by $209000 or 11 .2% during the year ended December 31 2008 due to an increase in the average

yield of 53 basis points from 2007 and $340000 or .O% increase in the average
balance outstanding

Interest income on other interest-earning assets decreased by $142000 or 62.8% during the year ended

December 31 2008 The decrease was due to 325 basis point decrease in the average yield which was

partially offset by $80000 increase in the average balance outstanding

Interest Expense

Interest expense totaled $8.4 million for the year
ended December 31 2008 decrease of $1.1 million or

11.1% compared to the year
ended December 31 2007 The average balance of interest-bearing liabilities

outstanding increased by $12.6 million during 2008 which was partially offset by decrease in the average

cost of liabilities of 61 basis points to 3.35% for the year ended December 31 2008 Interest expense on

deposits totaled $6.7 million for the
year

ended December 31 2008 decrease of $1.3 million or l6.6%

from the year ended December 31 2007 This decrease was result of decrease in the
average

cost of

deposits of 68 basis points to 3.l6% for 2008 which was partially
offset by an increase in the average

balance

outstanding of $3.0 million or 1.4% for 2008 Interest expense on borrowings totaled $1.7 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 an increase of $285000 or 19.9% from the 2007 period
This increase

resulted from an increase in the average
balance of borrowings outstanding of $9.6 million or 32.5% which

was partially offset by 46 basis point decrease in the average
cost of borrowings for the year

ended

December 31 2008 compared to 2007 The decrease in the average cost of deposits
and borrowings

reflects lower shorter term interest rates in 2008 as compared to 2007 as actions by the Federal Reserve

to reduce shorter term interest rates resulted in steepening of the yield curve and reduction of short

term and medium term interest rates

11



Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Year ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

continued

Net Interest Income

As result of the foregoing changes in interest income and interest expense net interest income increased by

$1.3 million or 15.9% during the year ended December 31 2008 from the
year

ended December 31 2007

The Savings Banks cost of its liabilities decreased more significantly than the yield on its assets during 2008

The
average interest rate spread increased to 2.49% for the year ended December 31 2008 from 2.00% for

the year ended December 31 2007 The net interest margin increased to 3.11 for the year ended December

31 2008 from 2.78% for the year ended December 31 2007

Provision for Losses on Loans

As result of an analysis of historical experience the volume and
type

of lending conducted by the Savings

Bank the status of past due principal and interest payments general economic conditions particularly as such

conditions relate to the Savings Banks market area and other factors related to the collectability of the

Savings Banks loan portfolio management recorded $668000 provision for losses on loans for the
year

ended December 31 2008 Managements analysis of the allowance resulted in $116000 provision for

losses on loans for the
year

ended December 31 2007 The decision to make larger provision for loan

losses during the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to recent periods reflects the amount

necessary to maintain an adequate allowance based on the five
year

historical loss experience and other

external factors These other external factors economic conditions increase in delinquent loans and

collateral value changes have had negative impact on non-owner occupied loans in the portfolio There can

be no assurance that the loan loss allowance will be sufficient to cover losses on nonperforming loans in the

future At December 31 2008 the allowance for loan losses totaled $709000 or O.26% of net loans

compared to $596000 or O.24% of net loans at December 31 2007 Management believes all

nonperforming loans are adequately collateralized however there can be no assurance that the loan loss

allowance will be adequate to absorb losses on known nonperforming loans or that the allowance will be

adequate to cover losses on nonperforming loans in the future

Other Income

Other income totaled $503000 for the year ended December 31 2008 decrease of $42000 or 7.7%

compared to the
year

ended December 31 2007 This decrease is due primarily to an increase in the loss on

sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure of $43000 loss on sale of office premises and equipment of

$1 5000 and reduction in gain on sales of loans which losses were partially offset by an increase in other

income of $14000

12



Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Year ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

continued

General Administrative and Other Expense

General administrative and other
expense

totaled $7.4 million for the year
ended December 31 2008 an

increase of $73000 or 1.0% compared to the
year

ended December 31 2007 This increase is result of

$55000 or 6.l% increase in
property payroll and other taxes and an increase of $21000 or 3.7% in

occupancy and equipment expenses The increase in property payroll and other taxes is due primarily to an

increase in the Ohio franchise tax The increase in occupancy and equipment expense was due primarily to

expense incurred for routine maintenance and
repair on our six branch facilities including furniture and

fixtures

FDIC Premiums

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC imposes an assessment against
institutions for deposit

insurance This assessment is based on the risk category of the institution and currently ranges
from to

43 basis points of the institutions deposits Federal law requires
that the designated reserve ratio for the

deposit insurance fund be established by the FDIC at 1.15% to 1.50% of estimated insured deposits If this

reserve ratio drops below 1.15% or the FDIC expects that it to do so within six months the FDIC must

within 90 days establish and implement plan to restore the designated reserve ratio to 1.15% of estimated

insured deposits within five years absent extraordinary circumstances On December 22 2008 the FDIC

issued final rules increasing the current assessment rates for all institutions by basis points and up to 50

basis points for certain financial institutions for the first quarter
of 2009 It is expected that the FIDC will

adopt new risk based assessment system

In addition the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA temporarily increased the limit on

FDIC insurance
coverage

for deposits to $250000 through
December 31 2009 and the FDIC took action to

provide coverage
for newly-issued senior unsecured debt and non-interest bearing transaction accounts in

excess of the $250000 limit for which institutions will be assessed additional premiums

These actions will significantly increase our non-interest expense in 2009 and in future years as long as the

increased premiums are in place

Federal Income Taxes

The provision
for federal income taxes totaled $592000 for the year ended December 31 2008 an increase

of $164000 or 38.3% compared to the provision recorded for the 2007 period The increase resulted

primarily from the increase in earnings before taxes of $654000 or 48.3% The effective tax rates were

29.5% and 31.6% for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31 2007 and December 31 2006

General

Cheviot Financials net earnings totaled $926000 for the year
ended December 31 2007 decrease of

$770000 or 45.4% compared to the net earnings recorded for the year ended December 31 2006 The

decrease in net earnings reflects $435000 decrease in net interest income and $597000 increase in general

administrative and other expenses which was partially offset by $7000 increase in other income and

decrease in the provision for federal income taxes of $346000

Interest Income

Total interest income for the year ended December 31 2007 totaled $17.8 million an increase of $1.3

million or 7.8% compared to the
year

ended December 31 2006 The increase in interest income reflects

the impact of an increase of $10.7 million or 37% in the average
balance of interest-earning assets

outstanding during the year ended December 31 2007 as compared to the year ended December 31 2006

and an increase of 22 basis points in the average yield to 5.96% from 5.74%

Interest income on loans increased by $993000 or 7.1 O/ for the year
ended December 31 2007 The

increase in interest income on loans reflects $13.0 million or 5.6% increase in the average balance

outstanding during 2007 and an increase of basis points in the average yield to 6.09% Interest income on

mortgage-backed securities decreased by $145000 or 17.3% during the year ended December 31 2007 due

primarily to decrease in the average balance outstanding of $5.7 million partially offset by an increase in the

average yield of 96 basis points from the 2006 period Interest income on investment securities increased by

$470000 or 33.7% during the year
ended December 31 2007 due to an increase in the average yield of 82

basis points from the 2006 period and $4.1 million or 3.2% increase in the average
balance outstanding

Interest income on other interest-earning assets decreased by $36000 or 13.7% during the year ended

December 31 2007 The decrease was due to basis point decrease in the average yield and $643000

decrease in the average
balance outstanding

Interest Expense

Interest expense totaled $9.5 million for the year ended December 31 2007 an increase of $1.7 million or

22.1 compared to the
year

ended December 31 2006 The average balance of interest-bearing liabilities

outstanding increased by $15.6 million during 2007 and the
average

cost of liabilities increased by 49 basis

points to 3.96% for the year ended December 31 2007 Interest expense on deposits totaled $8.1 million for

the year
ended December 31 2007 an increase of $1.8 million or 27.9% from the year ended December 31

2006 This increase was result of an increase in the average cost of deposits of 58 basis points to 3.84% for

2007 as well as an increase in the average balance outstanding of $16.9 million or 8.7% for 2007 During

2007 our customers showed preference
for

higher-cost
certificate of deposit accounts as compared to lower

cost demand transaction and passbook deposits Consequently the composition
of our deposits is more

significantly comprised of time deposits in 2007 as compared to 2006 Interest expense on borrowings

totaled $1.4 million for the year ended December 31 2007 decrease of $44000 or 3.0% from the 2006

period This decrease resulted from decrease in the
average

balance of borrowings outstanding of $1.2

million or 3.9% which was partially offset by basis point increase in the
average cost of borrowings for

the
year

ended December 31 2007 from the 2006 period
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Year ended December 31 2007 and December 31 2006

continued

Net Interest Income

As result of the foregoing changes in interest income and interest expense net interest income decreased by

$435000 or 5.0% during the year
ended December 31 2007 from the

year
ended December 31 2006 The

average interest rate spread decreased to 2.0O% for the year
ended December 31 2007 from 2.27% for the

year ended December 31 2006 The net interest margin decreased to 2.78% for the year ended December

31 2007 from 3.03% for the year
ended December 31 2006

Provision for Losses on Loans

As result of an analysis of historical experience
the volume and type

of lending conducted by the Savings

Bank the status of past
due principal and interest payments general economic conditions particularly as such

conditions relate to the Savings Banks market area and other factors related to the coliectability of the

Savings
Banks loan portfolio management recorded $116000 provision

for losses on loans for the year

ended December 31 2007 Managements analysis of the allowance resulted in $25000 provision
for losses

on loans for the
year

ended December 31 2006 There can be no assurance that the allowance for loan losses

will be sufficient to cover losses on nonperforming loans in the future At December 31 2007 the allowance

for loan losses totaled $596000 or O.24% of net loans compared to $833000 or 0.35% of net loans at

December 31 2006 Management believes all nonperforming loans are adequately collateralized however

there can be no assurance that the allowance for loan losses will be adequate to absorb losses on known

nonperforming loans or that the allowance will be adequate to cover losses on nonperforming loans in the

future

Other Income

Other income totaled $545000 for the year
ended December 31 2007 an increase of $7000 or 1.3%

compared to the year ended December 31 2006 This increase is due primarily to an increase in other

operating income of $21000 or 7.1% to $315000 for the
year

ended December 31 2007 from $294000 for

the prior period an increase in the gain on sale of loans of $15000 and decrease in the loss on sale of real

estate acquired through foreclosure of $16000 which were partially
offset by decrease in the gain on sale of

office premises and equipment of $44000

General Administrative and Other Expense

General administrative and other expense
totaled $7.4 miffion for the

year
ended December 31 2007 an

increase of $597000 or 8.8% compared to the year ended December 31 2006 This increase is result of

$140000 or 3.3% increase in employee compensation and benefits expenses an increase of $127000 or

l6.3% in
property payroll and other taxes and an increase of $116000 or 26.1% in occupancy and

equipment expenses The increase in employee compensation and benefits is due primarily to an increase in

the number of employees reflecting
full

year
of operation

of two additional branches during 2007 as

compared to two quarters of operation
in 2006 The increase in property payroll and other taxes is due

primarily to an increase in the Ohio franchise tax The increase in occupancy and equipment expense
was

due primarily to expense
incurred for the operation of the two new branches opened in the latter quarters

of

2006
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Year ended December 31 2007 and December 31 2006

continued

Federal Income Taxes

The provision for federal income taxes totaled $428000 for the
year

ended December 31 2007 decrease of

$346000 or 44.7% compared to the
provision recorded for the 2006 period The decrease resulted

primarily

from the decrease in earnings before taxes of $1.1 million or 45.2% The effective tax rates were 31 .6% and

31.3% for the
years

ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively

Management of Market Risk

Qualitative Analysis

Our most significant form of market risk is interest rate risk The primary objective of our interest rate risk

policy is to manage the exposure of net interest income to changes in interest rates Our board of directors

and management evaluates the interest rate risk inherent in certain assets and liabilities determines the level

of risk
appropriate given our business strategy operating environment capital and liquidity requirements and

performance objectives and modifies lending investing deposit and borrowing strategies accordingly Our

board of directors reviews managements activities and strategies the effect of those strategies on the net

portfolio value and the effect that changes in market interest rates would have on net portfolio value

During 2008 short term interest rates declined which are used to price our deposit products and are used in

determining our cost of borrowings medium and long term interest rates increased which are used to

determine the pricing of our loan products This has resulted in increase of our interest rate spread and net

interest margin Consequently our net interest income increased in 2008 as compared to 2007

We actively monitor interest rate risk in connection with our lending investing deposit and borrowing

activities We emphasize the origination of residential and multi-family fixed-rate mortgage loans including

15 20 and 30 year first mortgage loans residential multi-family and commercial real estate adjustable-rate

loans construction loans and consumer loans Depending on market interest rates and our capital and

liquidity position we may sell our newly originated fixed-rate mortgage loans on servicing-retained or

servicing-released basis We also invest in short-term securities which generally have lower yields compared

to longer-term investments During 2008 we invested in longer-term securities that will improve our net

interest margin by leveraging these investments with borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank

Investment and borrowing terms were matched thereby reducing the exposure
of our net interest income to

changes in market interest rates

Quantitative Analysis

As
part

of its monitoring procedures the Asset and Liability Management Committee regularly reviews

interest rate risk by analyzing the impact of alternative interest rate environments on the market value of

portfolio equity which is defined as the net present
value of an institutions existing assets liabilities and off

balance-sheet instruments and evaluating such impacts against the maximum potential changes in market

value of portfolio equity that are authorized by the Savings Banks board of directors
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Quantitative Analysis

continued

The Office of Thrift Supervision provides the Savings Bank with the information presented in the following

tables They present the change
in the Savings Banks net portfolio

value NPV at December 31 2008 and

2007 that would occur upon an immediate change in interest rate based on Office of Thrift Supervision

assumptions but without effect to any steps
that management might take to counteract that change The

application
of the methodology attempts to quantify interest rate risk as the change in NPV which would

result from theoretical change in market interest rates of 100 200 and 300 basis points Generally NPV is

the discounted present value of the difference between incoming cash flows on interest-earning assets and

outgoing cash flows on interest-bearing liabilities
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Quantitative Analysis continued
December 31 2008

Change in

Interest Rates in

Basis Points Net Portfolio Value

bp Net Portfolio Value3 as of PV of Assets4

Rate Shock

in Rates1 Amount Change Change NPV Ratio5 Change

In thousands

300 bp $45589 $12509 21.5% 14.19% 269 bp

200bp 51957 6141 10.6 15.71 117

loObp 56292 1806 3.1 16.62 26
bp 58098 -- -- 16.88 --

-100 bp 56808 1290 2.2 16.39 49
-200 bp2 -- -- -- -- --

December 31 2007

Change in

Interest Rates in

Basis Points Net Portfolio Value

bp Net Portfolio Value3 as of PV of Assets4

Rate Shock

in Rates1 Amount Change Change NPV Ratio5 Change

In thousands

300 bp $42318 $18076 29.9% 13.96% 445 bp

200 bp 49431 10963 18.2 15.83 259
100 bp 55784 4610 7.6 17.38 103

bp 60394 -- -- 18.42 --

-lOObp 62790 2396 4.0 18.86 44

-200 bp2 63693 3299 5.5 18.92 51

Assumes an instantaneous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities

Not meaningful because some market rates would compute at rate less than zero

Net portfolio value represents the discounted present
value of the difference between incoming cash

flows on interest-earning and other assets and outgoing cash flows on interest-bearing liabilities

Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest-

earning assets

NPV Ratio represents the net portfolio value divided by the
present

value of assets

The model reflects that the Savings Banks NPV is more sensitive to an increase in interest rates than

decrease in interest rates The above table indicates that as of December 31 2008 in the event of 100 basis

point increase in interest rates we would experience 3.1% or $1.8 million decrease in net portfolio value

In the event of 100 basis point decrease in interest rates we would experience 2.2% or $1.3 million

decrease in net portfolio value However given the current level of market interest rates and the low

probability of further significant declines in absolute rates we did not calculate net portfolio value for interest

rate decreases of
greater

than 200 basis points
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Quantitative Analysis continued

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodologies
used in the above interest rate risk measurement

Modeling changes in net portfolio
value requires the making of certain assumptions regarding prepayment

and deposit decay rates which may or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields
and costs respond to

changes in market interest rates While we believe such assumptions to be reasonable there can be no

assurance that assumed prepayment rates and decay rates will approximate
actual future loan prepayment

and

deposit
withdrawal activity Moreover the NPV table presented assumes that the composition

of our

interest- sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning
of period

remains constant over the period

being measured and also assumes that particular change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the

yield curve regardless of the duration to maturity or repricing
of specific assets and liabilities Accordingly

although the NPV table provides an indication of our interest rate risk exposure
at particular point in time

such measurement is not intended to and does not provide precise forecast of the effect of changes in

market interest rates on our net portfolio
value and will differ from actual results

Liquidity
and Capital Resources

Liquidity describes our ability to meet the financial obligations
that arise in the ordinary course of business

Liquidity is primarily
needed to meet the borrowing and deposit

withdrawal requirements of our customers

and to fund current and planned expenditures Our primary sources of funds are deposits
scheduled

amortization and prepayments of loan principal and mortgage-backed securities maturities and calls of

securities and funds provided by our operations In addition we may borrow from the Federal Home Loan

Bank of Cincinnati At December 31 2008 and 2007 we had $44.6 million and $28.7 million respectively in

outstanding borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati and had the capacity to increase

such borrowings at those dates by approximately $99.3 million and $109.4 million respectively

Loan repayments
and maturing securities are relatively predictable source of funds However deposit

flows calls of securities and prepayments of loans and mortgage-backed securities are strongly influenced by

interest rates general and local economic conditions and competition
in the marketplace These factors

reduce the predictability
of these sources of funds

Our primary investing activities are the origination of one- to four-family real estate loans commercial real

estate construction and consumer loans and to lesser extent the purchase
of securities For the year

ended December 31 2008 loan originations
totaled $69.6 million compared to $47.7 million for the

year

ended December 31 2007 Purchases of investment securities totaled $19.0 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 and $11.0 million for the
year

ended December 31 2007

Total deposits decreased $3.5 million during the year
ended December 31 2008 while total deposits

increased $14.1 million during the year
ended December 31 2007 Deposit

flows are affected by the level of

interest rates the interest rates and products offered by competitors
and other factors At December 31

2008 certificates of deposit scheduled to mature within one year totaled $104.9 million Our ability to retain

these deposits will be determined in part by the interest rates we are wiffing to pay on such deposits
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Liquidity and Capital Resources continued

The following table sets forth information
regarding

the
Corporations obligations and commitments to make

future payments under contract as of December 31 2008

Payments due by period

Less Mote than More than More

than 1-3 3-5 than

year years years years Total

In thousands

Contractual obligations

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 3000 9000 2932 $29672 44604

Certificates of deposit 104868 23193 13573 141634

Amount of loan commitments and expiration

per period

Commitments to originate one- to four-family

loans 682 682

Home equity lines of credit 11640 11640

Undisbursed loans in process 2.623 2.623

Total contractual obligations $122.8t3 $32.193 $29.672 $201.183

We are committed to maintaining strong liquidity position We monitor our liquidity position on daily

basis We anticipate that we will have sufficient funds to meet our current funding commitments Based on

our deposit retention experience and current pricing strategy we anticipate that significant portion of

maturing time deposits will be retained

At December 31 2008 and 2007 we exceeded all of the applicable regulatory capital requirements Our core

Tier capital was $55.9 million and $53.4 million or 16.9% and 16.8% of total assets at December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively In order to be classified as well-capitalized under federal banking regulations we

were required to have core capital of at least $19.9 million or 6.0% of assets as of December 31 2008 To

be classified as well-capitalized savings bank we must also have ratio of total risk-based capital to risk

weighted assets of at least 0.0% At December 31 2008 and 2007 we had total risk-based capital ratio of

32.5% and 32.7% respectively
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Cheviot Financial Corp

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and related consolidated financial data presented
herein regarding

Cheviot Financial have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America which generally require the measurement of financial position and operating
results

in terms of historical dollars without considering changes
in relative purchasing power over time due to

inflation Unlike most industrial companies virtually all of Cheviot Financials assets and liabilities are

monetary in nature As result interest rates generally have more significant impact on Cheviot Financials

performance than does the effect of inflation Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or

in the same magnitude as the prices of goods and services because such prices are affected by inflation to

larger extent than interest rates
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Cheviot Financial Corp the Corporation is responsible for establishing
and

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting The Corporations internal control
system was

designed to provide reasonable assurance to the
Corporations management and Board of Directors regarding

the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements

The Corporations management assessed the effectiveness of the Corporations internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 In making this assessment the Corporations management used the

criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in

Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on its assessment the Corporations management believes

that as of December 31 2008 the Corporations internal control over financial reporting was effective based

on those criteria

This annual
report

does not include an attestation report
of the Corporations registered public accounting

firm regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation

by the Corporations registered public accounting firm
pursuant

to temporary rules of the Securities and

Exchange Commission that permit the Corporation to provide only managements report in this annual

report

Thomas Linneman Scott Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer and principal

accounting officer

March 18 2009

22



CLARK SCHAEFER HACKETT
STRENGTH IN NUMBERS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors

Cheviot Financial Corp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Cheviot Financial Corp
as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of earnings comprehensive

income shareholders equity and cash flows for the
year

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 These

consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporations management Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board Llthed States Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements axe free of material misstatement The Corporation is not

required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting

Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit

procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Corporations internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such

opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disdosutes

in the fmancial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as veli as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for our opinion

our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of Cheviot Financial Corp as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the

consolidated results of its operations arid its cash flows for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 in

conformitywith
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Ch4 4Wzf rCo

Cincinnati Ohio

March 18 2009

105 east fourth street ste 1500

cincinnati oh 45202

www.cshco.com

p.513.241.3111

23 1.513.241.1212

cincinnati columbus dayton middletown springfield
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Board of Directors
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CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31 2008 and 2007

In thousands

ASSETS 2008 2007

Cash and due from banks 4192 3680

Federal funds sold 4063 4313

Interest-earning deposits in other financial institutions 1.758 1.457

Cash and cash equivalents 10013 9450

Investment securities available for sale at fair value 23909 12178

Investment securities held to maturity at cost approximate

market value of $7074 and $23086 at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively 7000 23000

Mortgage-backed securities available for sale at fair value 648 814

Mortgage-backed securities held to maturity at cost approximate

market value of $6830 and $9577 at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively 6915 9500

Loans receivable net 267754 249832

Loans held for sale-at lower of cost or market 729

Real estate acquired through foreclosure net 1064 625

Office premises and equipment at depreciated cost 4969 5131

Federal Home Loan Bank stock at cost 3369 3238

Accrued interest receivable on loans 1159 1119

Accrued interest receivable on mortgage-backed securities 32 51

Accrued interest receivable on investments and interest-bearing deposits
466 418

Prepaid expenses and other assets 297 177

Bank-owned life insurance 3516 3383

Prepaid federal income taxes 160 144

Total assets $319.060

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Deposits $216048 $219526

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 44604 28665

Advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 1464 1253

Accrued interest payable
172 117

Accounts payable and other liabilities 1069 939

Deferred federal income taxes 412 640

Total liabilities 263769 251140

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock authorized 5000000 shares $01 par value none issued

Common stock authorized 30000000 shares $.01 par value

9918751 shares issued at December 31 2008 and 2007 99 99

Additional paid-in capital 43625 43418

Shares acquired by stock benefit plans 2829 3582

Treasury stock at cost 1046247 and 967077 shares at December 31 2008 and 2007 12799 12074
Retained earnings restricted 40276 40013

Accumulated comprehensive income loss unrealized gains losses on securities

available for sale net of tax benefits 141 46

Total shareholders equity 68.231 67920

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $332.000 $319.060

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these statements
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CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands except per
share data

2008 2007 2006

Interest income

Loans $15436 $15007 $14014

Mortgage-backed securities 464 693 838

Investment securities 2074 1865 1395

Interest-earning deposits and other 226 262

Total interest income 18058 17791 16509

Interest expense

Deposits 6727 8066 6305

Borrowings 1.433 1.477

Total interest expense
9.499 7.782

Net interest income 9613 8292 8727

Provision for losses on loans _.Ji _._2

Net interest income after provision for

losses on loans 8945 8176 8702

Other income

Rental 51 47 44

Loss on sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 48 21
Gain loss on sale of office premises and equipment 15 44

Gain on sale of loans 53 59 44

Earnings on bank-owned life insurance 133 129 133

Other operating _Ji
Total other income 503 545 538

General administrative and other expense

Employee compensation and benefits 4331 4356 4216

Occupancy and equipment 582 561 445

Property payroll and other taxes 960 905 778

Data processing 311 306 281

Legal and professional 382 404 382

Advertising 196 174 164

Other operating 678 _.i 5Q4
Total general administrative and other

expense L44Q

Earnings before income taxes 2008 1354 2470

Federal income taxes benefits

Current 724 304 667

Deferred 42 ...J.24

Total federal income taxes 22 42

NET EARNINGS $2

Earnings per share basic and diluted $Q

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these statements
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CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands

2008 2007 2006

Net earnings $1416 $926 $1696

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax expense benefit

Unrealized holding gains losses on securities during the

period net of tax expense benefit of $96 $28 and $- for the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Comprehensive income $Q

Accumulated comprehensive income loss $4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net earnings for the period 1416 926 $1696

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash

provided by operating activities

Amortization of premiums and discounts on

investment and mortgage-backed securities net 21 11 18

Depreciation 301 341 265

Amortization expense
related to stock benefit plans 715 810 813

Amortization of deferred loan origination fees 14 22
Proceeds from sale of loans in the secondary market 3836 3670 2440

Loans originated for sale in the secondary market 3783 3454 2417

Gain on sale of loans 53 59 44
Loss on sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 48 21

Gain loss on sale of office premises and equipment
15 44

Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends 131 181

Earnings on bank-owned life insurance 133 129 133
Provision for losses on loans 668 116 25

Increase decrease in cash due to changes in

Accrued interest receivable on loans 40 46 200

Accrued interest receivable on mortgage-backed securities 19 14

Accrued interest receivable on investments and interest-

bearing deposits 48 21 141

Prepaid expenses and other assets 143 38

Accrued interest payable 55 115

Accounts payable and other liabilities 130 100 51
Federal income taxes

Current 16 193 105

Deferred 1321 ...i.2

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 2704 2029 2305

Cash flows used in investing activities

Principal repayments on loans 45625 34565 39175

Loan disbursements 65784 44251 57624

Loans purchased 455
Purchase of investment securities available for sale 18973 11002 8998
Proceeds from maturity of investment securities available for sale 7000 8000 2000

Proceeds from maturity of investment securities held to maturity 16000 2000 2000

Purchase of municipal obligations available for sale 2080

Proceeds from maturity of municipal obligations held to maturity
100

Principal repayments on mortgage-backed securities available for sale 146 236 235

Principal repayments on mortgage-backed securities held to maturity 2585 4730 6036

Additions to real estate acquired through foreclosure

Proceeds from sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 839 146 68

Purchase of office premises and equipment 154 75 2075
Proceeds from the sale of office premises and equipment

85

Net cash flows used in investing activities 13.180 i.i 78

Net cash flows used in operating and investing

activities balance carried forward $10.476 18.873

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED

For the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 arid 2006

In thousands

2008 2007 2006

Net cash flows used in operating and investing

activities balance brought forward $10476 $3525 $18873

Cash flows provided by financing activities

Net increase decrease in deposits 3478 14076 24212

Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 25500 13000 5500

Repayments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances 9561 13571 9473
Advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 211 50 140

Stock option expense net 245 242 239

Treasury stock repurchases 725 5228 4309
Dividends paid on common stock i.i 1.049

Net cash flows provided by

financing activities 11.039 7.485 15.260

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 563 3960 3613

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 9.450 5.490 9.103

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 10.013 $4 5.490

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid during the period for

Federal income taxes _144 A7 704

Interest on deposits and borrowings $1Q 7.667

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing activities

Transfers from loans to real estate acquired through

foreclosure $1Th

Loans originated upon sales of real estate acquired

through foreclosure $J.B $6
Recognition of mortgage servicing rights in accordance

with SFAS No 156 $20 $j4 19

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these statements
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CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In January 2004 the Board of Directors of Cheviot Savings Bank the Savings Bank completed Plan

of Reorganization the Plan or the Reorganization pursuant to which the Savings Bank reorganized

into two-tier mutual holding company structure with the establishment of stock holding company

Cheviot Financial Corp Cheviot Financial or the Corporation as parent of the Savings Bank which

converted to stock form followed by the issuance of all the Savings Banks outstanding stock to Cheviot

Financial Pursuant to the Plan Cheviot Financial issued 9918751 common shares of which

approximately 55% were issued to Cheviot Mutual Holding Company federally-chartered mutual

holding company Cheviot Financial sold 4388438 common shares representing approximately
44% of

the outstanding common stock to the Savings Banks depositors
and newly

formed Employee Stock

Ownership Plan ESOP at an initial issuance price of $10.00 per
share In addition 75000 shares or

approximately one percent of the outstanding shares were issued to charitable foundation established by

Cheviot Financial The Reorganization and related stock offering resulted in cash proceeds net of

offering costs and shares issued to the ESOP totaling approximately $39.3 million

The Corporation
conducts general banking business in southwestern Ohio which consists of attracting

deposits from the general public and applying those funds to the origination of loans for residential

commercial and consumer purposes The Corporations profitability is significantly dependent on net

interest income which is the difference between interest income generated from interest-earning assets

i.e loans and investments and interest expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities i.e customer deposits

and borrowed funds Net interest income is affected by the relative amount of interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities and the interest received or paid on these balances The level of interest rates

paid or received by the Corporation can be significantly
influenced by number of environmental factors

such as governmental monetary policy
that are outside of managements control

The financial information presented herein has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP and general accounting practices

within the financial services industry In preparing
financial statements in accordance with U.S GAAP

management is required to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from such estimates

The following is summary of significant accounting policies which with the exception
of the policy

described in Note A-I have been consistently applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial

statements

rinciof Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 include the accounts of the Corporation
and its wholly-owned subsidiary the Savings

Bank All significant intercompany items have been eliminated
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Investment and Mortgage-backed Securities

The
Corporation accounts for investment and mortgage-backed securities in accordance with Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 115 Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and

Equity Securities SFAS No 115 requires that investments be categorized as held to maturity trading or

available for sale Securities classified as held to maturity are carried at cost only if the Corporation has

the positive intent and ability to hold these securities to maturity Securities available for sale are carried at

fair value with resulting unrealized gains or losses recorded in shareholders equity Realized gains or

losses on sales of securities are recognized using the specific identification method

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at the principal amount outstanding adjusted for deferred loan origination
fees

and the allowance for loan losses Interest is accrued as earned unless the collectability of the loan is in

doubt Loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status when they are contractually past
due 150 days or

more Interest on loans that are contractually past
due more than 150 days is charged off or an allowance

is established based on managements periodic evaluation The allowance is established by charge to

interest income equal to all interest previously accrued and income is subsequently recognized only to the

extent that cash payments are received until in managements judgment the borrowers ability to make

periodic interest and principal payments has returned to normal in which case the loan is returned to

accrual status If the ultimate collectability of the loan is in doubt in whole or in part all payments

received on nonaccrual loans are applied to reduce principal until such doubt is eliminated

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost less principal payments received or fair value market

value calculated on an aggregate
basis At December 31 2008 the Corporation had $729000 in loans

held for sale

The Corporation accounts for mortgage servicing rights in accordance with SFAS No 156 Accounting

for Servicing of Financial Assets-an amendment of SFAS No 140 which requires that the Corporation

recognize as separate assets rights to service mortgage loans for others regardless of how those servicing

rights are acquired An institution that acquires mortgage servicing rights through either the purchase or

origination of mortgage loans and sells those loans with servicing rights retained must allocate some of the

cost of the loans to the mortgage servicing rights at fair value The Corporation has opted to account for

the capitalized servicing rights as being amortized in proportion to and over the estimated period
of

servicing income

The Corporation recorded mortgage servicing rights totaling $2000 $10000 and $16000 net of

amortization during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The carrying value

of the Corporations mortgage servicing rights which approximated fair value totaled approximately

$74000 and $76000 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Loans Receivable continued

The Corporation was servicing mortgage loans of approximately $9.6 million and $8.9 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively all of which had been sold to the Federal Home Loan Bank of

Cincinnati

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

The Corporation accounts for loan origination fees and costs in accordance with the provisions
of SFAS

No 91 Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring
Loans

and Initial Direct Costs of Leases Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No 91 origination fees received

from loans net of direct origination costs are deferred and amortized to interest income using
the level-

yield method giving effect to actual loan prepayments Additionally SFAS No 91 generally limits the

definition of loan origination costs to the direct costs attributable to originating loan i.e principally

actual personnel costs Fees received for loan commitments that are expected to be drawn upon based

on the Corporations experience
with similar commitments are deferred and amortized over the life of the

loan using the level-yield method Fees for other loan commitments are deferred and amortized over the

loan commitment period on straight-line basis

Allowance for Loan Losses

It is the Corporations policy to provide valuation allowances for estimated losses on loans primarily based

on past loan loss experience Additionally the Corporation considers changes in the composition
of the

loan portfolio trends in the level of delinquent and problem loans adverse situations that may affect the

borrowers ability to repay the estimated value of any underlying collateral and current and anticipated

economic conditions in the primary lending area When the collection of loan becomes doubtful or

otherwise troubled the Corporation records charge-off equal to the difference between the fair value of

the property securing the loan and the loans carrying value Major loans and major lending areas are

reviewed periodically to determine potential problems at an early date The allowance for loan losses is

increased by charges to earnings and decreased by charge-offs net of recoveries

The Corporation accounts for impaired loans in accordance with SFAS No 114 Accounting by Creditors

for Impairment of Loan This Statement requires that impaired loans be measured based upon the

present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate or as an

alternative at the loans observable market price or fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral-

dependent

loan is defined under SFAS No 114 as impaired when based on current information and events it is

probable that creditor will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the

loan agreement In applying the provisions of SFAS No 114 the Corporation considers its investment in

existing one- to four-family residential loans and consumer installment loans to be homogeneous and

therefore excluded from separate
identification for evaluation of impairment With respect to the

Corporations investment in construction commercial and multi-family residential real estate loans and its

evaluation of impairment thereof such loans are generally collateral-dependent and as result are carried

as practical expedient at the lower of cost or fair value of collateral
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Allowance for Loan Losses continued

Collateral-dependent loans which are more than one hundred fifty days delinquent are considered to

constitute more than minimum delay in repayment and are evaluated for impairment under SFAS No
114 at that time

Real Estate Acquired through Foreclosure

Real estate acquired through foreclosure is carried at the lower of the loans unpaid principal balance

cost or fair value less estimated seffing expenses at the date of acquisition
loan loss provision is

recorded for any write down in the loans carrying value to fair value at the date of acquisition
Real estate

loss provisions are recorded if the properties fair values subsequently
decline below the value determined

at the recording
date In determining the lower of cost or fair value at acquisition costs relating to

development and improvement of property are considered Costs relating to holding real estate acquired

through foreclosure net of rental income are charged against earnings as incurred

Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The Corporation is required as condition of membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati

FHLB to maintain an investment in FHLB common stock The stock is redeemable at par and

therefore its cost is equivalent to its redemption value The Corporations ability to redeem FHLB shares

is dependent on the redemption practices of the FHLB of Cincinnati At December 31 2008 the FHLB

of Cincinnati placed no restrictions on redemption of shares in excess of members required investment

in the stock

Office Premises and Equipment

Office premises and equipment are carried at cost Maintenance repairs and minor renewals are expensed

as incurred For financial reporting depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line and

accelerated methods over the useful lives of the assets estimated to be between fifteen and forty years for

buildings and improvements five to ten years
for furniture and equipment and five years for automobiles

An accelerated method is used for tax reporting purposes

Federal Income Taxes

The Corporation accounts for federal income taxes pursuant to SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income

Taxes In accordance with SFAS No 109 deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset is computed by

applying the current statutory tax rates to net taxable or deductible temporary
differences between the tax

basis of an asset or liability and its reported amount in the financial statements that will result in net

taxable or deductible amounts in future periods Deferred tax assets are recorded only to the extent that

the amount of net deductible temporary differences or carryforward attributes may be utilized against

current period earnings carried back against prior years earnings
offset against taxable temporary

differences reversing in future periods or utilized to the extent of managements estimate of future taxable

income valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets to the extent that the value of net

deductible temporary
differences and carryforward attributes exceeds managements estimates of taxes

payable on future taxable income Deferred tax liabilities are provided on the total amount of net

temporary
differences taxable in the future
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Federal Income Taxes continued

The Corporations principal temporary differences between pretax
financial income and taxable income

result from different methods of accounting for deferred loan origination
fees and costs Federal Home

Loan Bank stock dividends the general loan loss allowance charitable contributions deferred

compensation and stock benefit plans Additional temporary
differences result from depreciation

computed using accelerated methods for tax purposes

The Corporation adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in

Income Taxes on January 2007 Previously the Corporation had accounted for tax contingencies

in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No Accounting for Contingencies

As required by Interpretation 48 which clarifies Statement No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes

the Corporation recognizes the financial statement benefit of tax position only after determining that the

relevant tax authority would more likely than not Sustain the position following an audit For tax

positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold the amount recognized in the financial

Statements is the largest
benefit that has

greater
than 50 percent

likelihood of being realized upon

ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority
At the adoption date the Corporation applied

Interpretation 48 to all tax positions for which the statute of limitations remained open As result of the

implementation of Interpretation 48 the Corporation was not required to record any liability for

unrecognized tax benefits as ofJanuary
2007 There have been no material changes in unrecognized tax

benefits since January 2007 As stated in the Annual Report the only known tax attribute which can

influence the Corporations effective tax rate is the utilization of charitable contribution carryforwards

The Corporation
is subject to income taxes in the U.S federal jurisdiction as well as various state

jurisdictions Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax

laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply With few exceptions the Corporation is no

longer subject to U.S federal state and local or non U.S income tax examinations by tax authorities for

the years
before 2004

The Corporation will recognize if applicable interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in

interest expense and penalties in operating expenses

10 Benefit Plans

The Corporation has 401k retirement savings plan which covers all employees who have attained the

age of 21 and have completed one year
of service The Corporation is annually required to contribute 3%

of eligible employees salaries plus the lesser of 3% of each participants salary or 50% of each

participants contributions to the plan Additional employer contributions are made at the discretion of

the Board of Directors Employer contributions totaled $177000 $176000 and $172000 for the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The Corporation
has nonqualified directors deferred compensation plan the compensation plan

which provides for the payment of benefits to its directors upon termination of service with the

Corporation The Corporation recorded expense
of approximately $21000 for the directors deferred

compensation plan for each of the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006
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Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

10 Benefit Plans continued

In connection with the Reorganization the Corporation implemented an Employee Stock Ownership

Plan ESOP which provides retirement benefits for substantially all fulltime employees who have

completed one year
of service and have attained the

age
of 21 The Corporation accounts for the ESOP

in accordance with Statement of Position SOP 93-6 Employers Accounting for Employee Stock

Ownership Plans SOP 93-6 requires that compensation expense
recorded by employers equal the fair

value of ESOP shares allocated to participants during given year
Allocation of shares to the ESOP

participants is predicated upon the repayment of loan to Cheviot Financial Corp totaling $2.0 million

and $2.3 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Dividends paid on the unallocated shares

are used to fund the loan payment The Corporation recorded expense related to the ESOP of

approximately $300000 $453000 and $432000 for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively In 2008 The fair value of the unearned ESOP shares approximated $1.5 million at December

31 2008

In 2005 the Corporation initiated Management Recognition Plan MRP or the Plan which

provided for awards of 194408 shares to members of the board of directors management and certain

employees Common shares awarded under the MRP vest over five year period commencing with the

date of the grant Expense recognized under the MRP totaled $400000 $394000 and $408000 for the

years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Total nonvested shares at December 31

2007 were 104540 at weighted average grant price of $11.57 During the years
ended December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 3025 shares 2325 shares and 2125 shares were awarded under the Corporations

MRP respectively at weighted average grant price of $11.57 During the year
ended December 31 2008

34395 shares vested at an
average price of $8.51 At December 31 2008 total nonvested shares were

73170 at weighted average grant
date fair value of $11.57

11 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments requires disclosure of fair value

of financial instruments both assets and liabilities whether or not recognized in the statement of financial

condition for which it is practicable to estimate that value For financial instruments where quoted

market prices are not available fair values are based on estimates using present
value and other valuation

methods

The methods used are greatly affected by the assumptions applied including the discount rate and

estimates of future cash flows Therefore the fair values presented may not represent
amounts that could

be realized in an exchange for certain financial instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation in estimating its fair value

disclosures for financial instruments at December 31 2008 and 2007

Cash and cash equivalents The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statements

of financial condition for cash and cash equivalents are deemed to approximate
fair value

Investment and
mortgage-backed

securities For investment and mortgage-backed

securities fair value is deemed to equal the quoted market price
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Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

11 Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

Loans receivable The loan portfolio was segregated into categories with similar

characteristics such as one-to four-family residential multi-family residential and

commercial real estate These loan categories were further delineated into fixed-rate and

adjustable-rate loans The fair values for the resultant loan categories were computed via

discounted cash flow analysis using current interest rates offered for loans with similar terms

to borrowers of similar credit quality For loans on deposit accounts fair values were

deemed to equal the historic carrying values The historical carrying amount of accrued

interest on loans is deemed to approximate fair value

Federal Home Loan Bank stock The carrying amount presented in the consolidated

statements of financial condition is deemed to approximate fair value

Deposits The fair value of NOW accounts passbook accounts and money market demand

deposits is deemed to approximate the amount payable on demand at December 31 2008

and 2007 Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit
have been estimated using

discounted cash flow calculation using the interest rates currently offered for deposits of

similar remaining maturities

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank The fair value of these advances is estimated

using the rates currently offered for similar advances of similar remaining maturities or

when available quoted market prices

Advances by Borrowers for Taxes and Insurance The carrying amount of advances by

borrowers for taxes and insurance is deemed to approximate fair value

Commitments to extend credit For fixed-rate loan commitments the fair value estimate

considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and committed rates At

December 31 2008 and 2007 the fair value of loan commitments was not material
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Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

11 Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

Based on the foregoing methods and assumptions the carrying
value and fair value of the Corporations

financial instruments were as follows at December 31

2008 2007

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

value value value value

In thousands

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10013 10013 9450 9450

Investment securities 30909 30983 35178 35264

Mortgage-backed securities 7563 7478 10314 10391

Loans receivable net 268483 286760 249832 249371

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 3.369 3.369 3.238 3.238

$320.337 $338.603 $308.012 $307114

Financial liabilities

Deposits $216048 $216553 $219526 $219701

Advances from the Federal Home

Loan Bank 44604 48170 28665 30165

Advances by borrowers for taxes

and insurance 1.464 1.464 1.253 1.253

$262.116 $266187 $249444 $251i19

12 Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred

13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For
purposes

of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents
include cash and due from banks federal

funds sold and interest-beating deposits in other financial institutions with original terms to maturity of

ninety days or less

14 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per
share is computed based upon the weighted-average common shares outstanding

during the year less shares in the ESOP that are unallocated and not committed to be released Weighted-

average common shares deemed outstanding gives effect to reduction for 178540 214247 and 249954

unallocated shares held by the ESOP for the fiscal years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively
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NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

14 Earnings Per Share continued

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding basic
8684509 8904177 9225311

Dilutive effect of assumed exercise

of stock options
44527 96.184 31.117

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding diluted
8729.036 9.0003 9.256.428

15 Stock Option Plan

During 2005 the Corporation approved Stock Incentive Plan that provides for grants
of up to 486018

stock options During 2008 2007 and 2006 approximately 8060 6460 and 6100 option
shares were

granted subject to five year vesting respectively

In 2004 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting

Standard SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment which revises SFAS No 123 Accounting for

Stock-Based Compensation and supersedes Accounting Principles Board APB Opinion No 25

Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees SFAS No 123R requires
that cost related to the fair value

of all equity-based awards to employees including grants of employee stock options be recognized in the

financial statements

The Corporation adopted the provisions of SFAS No 123R effective January 2006 using the modified

prospective
transition method Under this method the Corporation

has applied the provisions
of SFAS

No 123R to new equity-based awards and to equity-based awards modified repurchased or cancelled

after January 2006 In addition the Corporation compensation cost includes the portion of equity-based

awards for which the requisite
service period has not been rendered unvested equity-based awards that

are outstanding as of January 2006 The compensation cost recorded for unvested equity-based awards

is based on their grant-date fair value For the year
ended December 31 2008 the Corporation

recorded

$267000 $245000 after-tax compensation cost for equity-based awards that vested during the year

ended December 31 2008 The Corporation has $374000 unrecognized pre-tax compensation cost

related to non-vested equity-based awards granted under its stock incentive plan as of December 31 2008

which is expected to be recognized over weighted-average vesting period
of approximately

1.5
years

There is no intrinsic value on the outstanding options due to the strike price exceeding the market price at

December 31 2008
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NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

15 Stock Option Plan continued

summary of the status of the Corporations stock option plan as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

and changes during the year then ended is presented below

2008 2007 2006

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

average average average

exercise exercise exercise

Shares price Shares price Shares price

Outstandingatbeginningofyear 396220 $11.21 389760 $11.17 383700 $11.15

Granted 8060 9.03 6460 13.63 6060 12.12

Exercised

Forfeited .__..

Outstanding at end of year 404.280 $1116 396.220 389.760 $j
Options exercisable at year-end 233.936 $1117 154.692 $111.6 76.740 $AL

Fair value of options granted

during the
year $i.2 $27 $97

Cumulative
option compensation

cost over service period

in thousands

Remaining service period 18 months 31 months 41 months

The following information applies to options outstanding at December 31 2008

Number outstanding 404280

Exercise price $9.03 $13.63

Weighted-average exercise price $11.16

Weighted-average remaining contractual life 6.5
years

The expected term of options is based on evaluations of historical and expected future employee exercise

behavior The risk-free interest rate is based upon the U.S Treasury rates at the date of
grant

with

maturity dates approximately equal to the
expected life at grant

date Volatility is based upon the historical

volatility of the Corporations stock

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the modified Black-Scholes

options-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2008 2007 and

2006 dividend yield of 3.65% 2.35% and 2.31% expected volatility of 26.13% 10.12% and 14.43% risk-

free interest rates of 3.78% 4.83% and 5.07% and expected
lives of 10

years
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NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

16 Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Effective January 2008 the Corporation adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 157

Fair Value Measurements FAS 157 FAS 157 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring
fair

value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements FAS 157 has been applied prospectively as

of the beginning of the year

FAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date FAS 157 also establishes

fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the

use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels of inputs that

may be used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs
that are

observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full

term of the assets or liabilities

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are

significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities

Fair value methods and assumptions are set forth below for each type
of financial instrument

Securities available for sale Fair values on available for sale securities were based upon market approach

Securities which are fixed income instruments that are not quoted on an exchange but are traded in active

markets are valued using prices obtained from our custodian which used third
party

data service

providers

Available for sale securities include U.S
agency securities municipal bonds and mortgage-backed agency

securities

Fair Value Measurements at

December 31 2008

Quoted prices

in active Significant Significant

markets for other other

identical observable unobservable

assets inputs inputs

December 31 2008 J.evel Level Level

Securities available for sale 24557 $24557
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16 Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities continued

The
Corporation is predominately an asset-based lender with real estate serving as collateral on

substantial majority of loans Loans which are deemed to be impaired are primarily
valued on

nonrecurring basis at the fair values of the underlying real estate collateral Such fair values are obtained

using independent appraisals which the Corporation considers to be Level inputs The aggregate

carrying amount of impaired loans at December 31 2008 was approximately $1.8 miffion

FASB Staff Position Number FAS 157-2 delays the implementation of SFAS 157 until the first quarter of

2009 with
respect to goodwill other intangible assets real estate and other assets acquired through

foreclosure and other non-financial assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis

17 Recent Accounting Developments

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 establishes framework for

measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and expands disclosures about

fair value measurements While the Statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that

require or permit fair value measurements it does not require any new fair value measurements SFAS

No 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability

an exit price in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date In addition

the Statement establishes fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used

to measure fair value into three broad levels Lastly SFAS No 157 requires additional disclosures for each

interim and annual period separately for each major category of assets and liabilities The Statement is

effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2007 for financial

assets and liabilities and November 15 2008 for non-financial assets and liabilities and interim periods

within those fiscal years The adoption of this Statement did not have material impact on the

Corporations consolidated financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities-Including an Amendment to FASB Statement No 115 This statement permits

entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value The

objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility

in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply

complex hedge accounting provisions This Statement is expected to expand the use of fair value

measurement which is consistent with FASBs long-term measurement objectives for accounting for

financial instruments This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning

after November 15 2007 Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of the fiscal year that begins on

or before November 15 2007 provided the entity also elects to apply the provisions of FAS No 157

Fair Value Measurements The adoption of this Statement did not have material impact on the

Corporations consolidated financial statements
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NOTE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

17 Recent Accounting Developments continued

On November 2007 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No 109 Written Loan Commitments

Recorded at Fair Value through Earnings SAB 109 Previously SAB 105 Application
of Accounting

Principles to Loan Commitments stated that in measuring the fair value of derivative loan commitment

Corporation
should not incorporate the expected net future cash flows related to the associated

servicing of the loan SAB 109 supersedes SAB 105 and indicates that the expected net future cash flows

related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in measuring fair value for all written

loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings SAB 105 also indicated that

internally-developed intangible assets should not be recorded as part
of the fair value of derivative loan

commitment and SAB 109 retains that view SAB 109 is effective for derivative loan commitments issued

or modified in fiscal
quarters beginning after December 15 2007 The impact of SAB 109 did not have

material impact on the Corporations consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial

Statements SFAS 160s objective is to improve the relevance comparability
and

transparency
of the

financial information that reporting entity provides in its consolidated financial statements by

establishing accounting and reporting standards for the noncontroffing interest in subsidiary and for

deconsolidation of subsidiary SFAS 160 shall be effective for fiscal
years

and interim periods within

those fiscal
years beginning on or after December 15 2008 We do not expect

the implementation of

SFAS 160 to have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities an Amendment of FASB Statement No 133 This statement changes the disclosure

requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities SFAS No 161 requires enhanced

disclosures about how and why an entity uses derivative instruments how derivative instruments

and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No 133 and its related interpretations and

how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entitys financial position
financial

performance and cash flows This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years

and

interim periods beginning after November 15 2008 We have not yet determined the effect that the

application of SFAS No 161 will have on the disclosures to our consolidated financial statements

On October 10 2008 the FASB issued Staff Position FSP No 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of

Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset is Not Active FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of

SFAS 157 in market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in

determining the fair value of financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not active FSP

157-3 was effective immediately upon issuance and includes prior periods
for which financial statements

have not been issued We applied the guidance contained in FSP 157-3 in determining fair values at

September 30 2008 and subsequent periods although it did not have material impact on our financial

condition results of operations or liquidity
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Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE INVESTMENT AND MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES

The amortized cost gross unrealized gains gross unrealized losses and estimated fair values of investment

securities at December 31 are shown below

December 31 2008

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized unrealized unrealized fair

cost gains losses value

In thousands

Available for Sale

US Government agency securities $21995 $62 45 $22012

Municipal obligations 2.110 ..2 215 1.897

$24.105 $M $23.909

Held to Maturity

U.S Government agency
securities

December 31 2007

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized unrealized unrealized fair

cost gains
losses value

In thousands

Available for Sale

U.S Government agency securities $10001 87 $10088

Municipal obligations 2.110 ....5 25 2.090

Held to Maturity

U.S Government agency
securities $23000 $100 $14 $23.086

The amortized cost of investment securities at December 31 2008 and 2007 by contractual term to

maturity are shown below

December 31

2008 2007

In thousands

Less than one year 7000

One to five
years

24000

Five to ten years
565 565

More than ten years
23540 10.546

$31.105 $35111
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NOTE INVESTMENT AND MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES continued

The amortized cost gross
unrealized gains gross unrealized losses and estimated fair values of mortgage-

backed securities at December 31 2008 and 2007 are shown below

December 31 2008

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized unrealized unrealized fair

cost gains losses value

In thousands

Available for sale

Government National Mortgage

Association adjustable-rate

participation
certificates $i $4

Held to maturity
Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corporation adjustable-rate

participation certificates 683 $1 $1 $683

Federal National Mortgage 757 752

Association adjustable-rate

participation certificates

Government National Mortgage

Association adjustable-rate

participation certificates

$4q

December 31 2007

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized unrealized unrealized fair

Cost gains losses value

In thousands

Available for sale

Government National Mortgage
Association adjustable-rate

participation certificates

Held to maturity

Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corporation adjustable-rate

participation certificates 802 $809

Federal National Mortgage 930 934

Association adjustable-rate

participation certificates

Government National Mortgage

Association adjustable-rate

participation certificates L4

$z $2
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NOTE INVESTMENT AND MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES continued

The amortized cost of mortgage-backed securities including those designated as available for sale at

December 31 2008 and 2007 by contractual terms to maturity are shown below Expected maturities

will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may generally prepay obligations without

prepayment penalties

December 31

2008 2007

In thousands

Due in one year or less 203 219

Due in one year through five years
923 1019

Due in five years through ten years 1443 1666

Due in more than ten years 12 7.407

$10.311

The table below indicates the length of time individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss

position at December 31 2008 and 2007

December 31 2008

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Description of Number of Fair Unrealized Numberof Fair Unrealized Numberof Fair Unrealized

securities invesunents value losses investments value losses investments value losses

ollars in thousands

U.S Government

agency securities 3954 45 3954 $45

Municipal obligations 1020 215 1020 215

Mortgage-backed

securities iQ J.Q j9 W42

Total
tenporatily

impaited securities $J4B

December 31 2007

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Description of Number of Fair Unrealized Number of Fair Unrealized Number of Fair Unrealized

securities investments value losses investments value losses investments value losses

oHan in thousands

Government

agencysecurities $1986 $14 $1986 $14

Municipal obligations 512 71 15 1212 23

Mortgage-backed

securities

Total tesnpotanly

impaited securities 512
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NOTE INVESTMENT AND MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES continued

Management has the intent and ability to hold these securities for the foreseeable future The decline in

the fair value is primarily due to an increase in market interest rates The fair values are expected to

recover as securities approach maturity dates

NOTE LOANS RECEIVABLE

The composition of the loan portfolio including loans held for sale at December 31 was as follows

2008 2007

In thousands

One- to four-family
residential $234822 $216958

Multi-family residential 9385 10638

Construction 11646 19421

Commercial 15942 10018

Consumer 48 66

271843 257101

Less

Undisbursed portion of loans in process 2623 6585

Deferred loan origination fees 28 88

Allowance for loan losses 709 596

$4
The Corporations lending efforts have historically focused on one- to four-family and multi-family

residential real estate loans which comprise approximately $253.2 million or 94% of the net loan

portfolio at December 31 2008 and approximately $240.4 million or 96% of the net loan portfolio at

December 31 2007 Generally such loans have been underwritten on the basis of no more than an 85%

loan-to-value ratio which has historically provided the Corporation
with adequate collateral coverage

in

the event of default Nevertheless the Corporation as with any lending institution is subject to the risk

that real estate values could deteriorate in its primary lending area of southwestern Ohio thereby

impairing collateral values

In the ordinary course of business the Corporation has made loans to its executive officers and directors

Loans to these officers and directors as well as employees are made at reduced interest rates and closing

costs These loans do not involve more than the normal risk of collectability The aggregate
dollar

amount of loans to executive officers and directors totaled approximately $1.5 million and $1.3 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively During the year
ended December 31 2008 there was

approximately $365000 in loans originated to officers and directors which was partially
offset by

repayments of approximately $150000
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Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows

2008 2007 2006

In thousands

Beginning balance $596 $833 $808

Provision for losses on loans 668 116 25

Charge-offs of loans 572 353
Recoveries .11

Ending balance $709 $2 $8

At December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 the Corporations allowance for loan losses was comprised of

general loan loss allowance of $679000 $519000 and $822000 respectively which is includible as

component of regulatory risk-based capital and specific loan loss allowance totaling $30000 at

December 31 2008 $77000 at December 31 2007 and $11000 at December 312006

Nonperforming and impaired loans totaled approximately $1.8 million $660000 and $281000 at

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Loans past
due more than 90 days and still accruing

interest totaled approximately $204000 and $941000 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively In

addition approximately $5000 and $32000 of interest income was accrued on these loans at December

31 2008 and 2007 respectively

During the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 interest income of approximately $126000

$51000 and $7000 respectively would have been recognized had nonperforming loans been performing

in accordance with contractual terms

NOTE OFFICE PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Office premises and equipment are comprised of the following at December 31

2008 2007

In thousands

Land $1044 $1045

Buildings and improvements including construction-in-progress 5840 5835

Furniture and equipment 1044 1825

Automobiles

7973 8750

Less accumulated depreciation 12
S4.969

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Corporation had capitalized interest costs of approximately $11000

related to the construction of branch offices
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NOTE DEPOSITS

Deposits
consist of the following major classifications at December 31

Deposit type
and weighted-average

interest rate 2008 2007

In thousands

NOW accounts

2008 0.49% $18940

2007 0.67% $15830

Passbook accounts

2008 0.34% 14405

2007 0.99% 14938

Money market demand deposit

20081.52% 41069

2007 2.23% ______
33.069

Total demand transaction and

passbook deposits
74414 63837

Certificates of deposit

Original maturities of

Less than 12 months

20082.82% 42157

2007 4.72% 71043

12 to 18 months

20083.27% 55931

2007 4.86% 47199

24 months 36 months

2008 4.15% 23035

2007-4.71% 21928

Over 36 months

2008- 4.45% 20511

2007-4.31% ______
15.519

Total certificates of deposit
141.634 155.689

Total deposits

The Savings
Bank had deposit accounts with balances in excess of $100000 totaling $51.9 million and

$54.4 million including intercompany accounts totaling $10.0 million and $12.2 million which are

eliminated in consolidation at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
The Emergency Economic

Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA temporarily
increased the limit on FDIC insurance coverage

for deposits

from $100000 to $250000 through December 31 2009
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NOTE DEPOSITS continued

Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows at December 31

2008 2007 2006

In thousands

Passbook savings 79 134 150

NOW and money market demand deposits 714 818 781

Certificates of deposit 523.4 2.114 24

$O
Maturities of outstanding certificates of deposit at December 31 are summarized as follows

2008 2007

In thousands

Less than six months 55502 83496

Six months to one year 49366 45466

Over one year to three
years 23193 26559

Over three
years

13.573 168

$141.634 $155.689

In the ordinary course of business the Corporation accepted deposits from officers and directors At

December 31 2008 and 2007 total
deposits

from officers and directors totaled approximately $942000

and $742000 respectively

NOTE ADVANCES FROM THE FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank collateralized at December 31 2008 and 2007 by pledges of

certain residential mortgage loans totaling $55.8 million and $35.8 million respectively and the Savings

Banks investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock are summarized as follows

Maturing

year ending

Interest rate range December 31 2008 2007

at fixed rates Dollars in thousands

3.28% 2009 3000

2.98% 4.61% 2010 9000 2000

3.89% 5.44% 2012 2932 3905

3.75% 4.84% 2014 3840 4760
4.31% 5.36% 2015 9751 12076

5.25% 2016 1098 1360

5.27% 5.35% 2017 3493 4564
3.29%-4.18% 2018 11.490

$44.604

Weighted-average interest rate
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NOTE FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

Federal income taxes on earnings differs from that computed at the statutory corporate tax rate for the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 as follows

2008 2007 2006

Dollars
in thousands

Federal income taxes at statutory rate $683 $460 $840

Increase decrease in taxes resulting primarily from

Stock option expense
68 68 68

Charitable contributions carryforwards 74 37 67

Nontaxable interest income 30 38 20

Cash surrender value of life insurance 45 44 45

Other JiQ _12

Federal income taxes per financial statements

Effective tax rate

The composition
of the Corporations net deferred tax liability at December 31 is as follows

Taxes payable refundable on temporary
2008 2007

differences at statutory rate In thousands

Deferred tax assets

General loan loss allowance
231 176

Deferred compensation
98 98

Stock benefit plans
182 148

Unrealized losses on securities available for sale 73

Other

Total deferred tax assets
592 431

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred loan origination costs 190 208

Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends 784 739

Book/tax depreciation
75

Mortgage servicing rights
25 26

Unrealized gains on securities designated as available for sale __. 23

Total deferred tax liabilities LQ.4 LQ2i

Net deferred tax liability
$J412

The Corporation was allowed special bad debt deduction generally limited to 8% of otherwise taxable

income subject to certain limitations based on aggregate
loans and deposit account balances at the end of

the year
If the amounts that qualified as deductions for federal income taxes are later used for purposes

other than bad debt losses including distributions in liquidation
such distributions will be subject to

federal income taxes at the then current corporate
income tax rate Retained earnings at December 31

2008 include approximately $3.0 million for which federal income taxes have not been provided The

amount of unrecognized
deferred tax liability relating to the cumulative bad debt deduction at December

31 2008 was approximately $1.0 million During 2006 the Corporation
elected to file consolidated

federal tax return with the Bank This enabled the Corporation to utilize approximately $217000

$113000 $199000 of charitable contribution carryforwards for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively
At December 31 2008 the Corporation

had remaining charitable contribution

carryforwards of approximately $221000 the benefits of which in the absence of tax planning strategies

have been fully reserved
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NOTE COMMITMENTS

The
Corporation is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of

business to meet the financing needs of its customers including commitments to extend credit Such

commitments involve to varying degrees elements of credit and interest-rate risk in excess of the amount

recognized in the statements of financial condition The contract or notional amounts of the

commitments reflect the extent of the Corporations involvement in such financial instruments

The Corporations exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the

financial instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual notional amount

of those instruments The Corporation uses the same credit policies in making commitments and

conditional obligations as those utilized for on-balance-sheet instruments

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Corporation had outstanding commitments to originate fixed-rate

loans with interest rates ranging from 4.OO% to 8.25% totaling $682000 and $1.3 million respectively

secured by one- to four-family residential real estate Additionally the Corporation had unused lines of

credit under home equity loans totaling $11.6 million and $11.3 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively In the opinion of management all loan commitments equaled or exceeded prevalent market

interest rates as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and such commitments have been underwritten on the

same basis as that of the existing loan portfolio Management believes that all loan commitments are able

to be funded through cash flow from operations and existing excess liquidity Fees received in connection

with these commitments have not been recognized in earnings

At December 31 2007 the Corporation had deposit of earnest money for the purchase of land at total

cost of $1000 During 2008 the Corporation decided not to pursue
the

acquisition
of this land for future

branch expansion due to the decline in the development of the surrounding area

During 2004 the Savings Bank entered into lease agreement for office space under an operating lease

which expired in January 2006 The lease agreement required annual rental payments of approximately

$2000 in 2006 The lease contained three
one-year renewal options which the Savings Bank opted not to

renew in 2006 In January 2006 the Savings Bank entered into new one year operating lease agreement

which the Savings Bank opted to renew in January 2007 This lease expired in January 2008 and was not

renewed by the Bank The
Savings

Bank did not incur any rental expense for the year ended December

31 2008 The Savings Banks rental
expense

totaled $5000 for both
years

ended December 31 2007 and

2006 respectively

At December 31 2008 the Bank had $1 million line of credit with another local bank No funds have

been drawn on this line of credit as of December 31 2008
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NOTE REGULATORY CAPITAL

The Savings
Bank is subject to minimum regulatory capital standards promulgated by the Office of Thrift

Supervision the OTS Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory

and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken could have direct

material effect on its financial statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory

framework for prompt corrective action the Savings
Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that

involve quantitative measures of the Savings Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items

as calculated under regulatory accounting practices The Savings Banks capital amounts and classification

are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings
and other

factors

The minimum capital standards of the OTS generally require the maintenance of regulatory capital

sufficient to meet each of three tests hereinafter described as the tangible capital requirement
the core

capital requirement and the risk-based capital requirement The tangible capital requirement provides for

minimum tangible capital defined as shareholders equity less all intangible assets equal to 1.5% of

adjusted total assets The core capital requirement provides for minimum core capital tangible capital

plus certain forms of supervisory goodwill and other qualifying intangible assets generally equal to 4.0%

of adjusted total assets except for those associations with the highest
examination rating

and acceptable

levels of risk The risk-based capital requirement provides
for the maintenance of core capital plus general

loss allowances equal to 8.O% of risk-weighted assets In computing risk-weighted assets the Corporation

multiplies the value of each asset on its statement of financial condition by defined risk-weighting factor

e.g one- to four-family residential loans carry risk-weighted factor of 50%

During 2008 the Savings Bank was notified by the OTS that it was categorized as well-capitalized under

the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action Additionally management is not aware of any

recent event that would cause this classification to change To be categorized as well-capitalized the

Savings Bank must maintain minimum capital ratios as set forth in the following table

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the Savings Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it

was subject
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NOTE REGULATORY CAPITAL continued

As of December 31 2008

To be well

capitalized under

For capital prompt corrective

Actual adequacy purposes action provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Dollars in thousands

Tangible capital $55927 16.8% 4981 1.5% $16604 .5.0%

Core capital $55927 16.8% $13283 4.0% $19924 6.0%

Risk-based capital $56606 32.5% $13922 $.0% $17403 .10.0%

As of December 31 2007

To be well-

capitalized under

For capital prompt corrective

Actual adequacy purposes
action provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Dollars in thousands

Tangible capital $53437 16.8% 4786 l.5% $l5954 5.O%

Core capital $53437 16.8% $12763 4.0% $l9145 6.0%

Risk-based capital $53956 32.7% $13213 8.0% $165l6 1O.O%

The Savings Banks management believes that under the current regulatory capital regulations the Savings

Bank will continue to meet its minimum capital requirements in the foreseeable future However events

beyond the control of the Savings Bank such as increased interest rates or downturn in the economy in

the Savings Banks market area could adversely affect future earnings and consequently the ability to

meet future minimum regulatory capital requirements

The Savings Bank is subject to regulations imposed by the OTS regarding the amount of capital

distributions payable by the Savings Bank to Cheviot Financial Generally the Savings Banks payment of

dividends is limited without prior OTS approval to net earnings for the current calendar year plus the two

preceding calendar years less capital distributions paid over the comparable time period Insured

institutions are required to file an application with the OTS for capital distributions in excess of this

limitation Dividends totaling $12.5 million which were approved by the OTS were paid to Cheviot

Financial Corp in 2006 As result of such dividend the Savings Bank is required to receive prior OTS

approval before declaring dividends to Cheviot Financial Corp

Regulations of the OTS governing mutual holding companies permit Cheviot Mutual Holding Company

the Holding Company to waive the
receipt by it of

any common stock dividend declared by Cheviot

Financial or the Savings Bank provided the OTS does not object to such waiver Pursuant to these

provisions the Holding Company waived $2.0 million in dividends during 2008
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NOTE CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following condensed financial statements summarize the financial position
of the Corporation as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31 2008 and 2007

In thousands

ASSETS 2008 2007

Cash in Cheviot Savings Bank $10000 $12171

Cash and due from banks
34 32

Loan receivable ESOP 1961 2309

Investment in Cheviot Savings Bank 55794 53490

Prepaid expenses and other assets
466

Prepaid federal income taxes
__fl

Total assets
$68.330

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Accounts payable and other liabilities
99 95

Common stock
99 99

Additional paid-in capital
43625 43418

Shares acquired by stock benefit plans
2829 3582

Treasury stock
12799 12074

Retained earnings
40276 40013

Accumulated comprehensive gain loss
141 46

Total shareholders equity
$68231 $67920

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Year ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands

2008 2007 2006

Income

Interest income
70 $157 208

Equity in earnings of Cheviot Savings Bank

Total income 1598 1112 1901

General administrative and other expense
24Q _.2Q1 _2Q

Earnings before federal income tax benefits 1358 911 1698

Federal income taxes benefits
15I

Net earnings
L4
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NOTE CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
continued

CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows provided used by operating activities

Net earnings for the year 1416 926 1696

Equity in undistributed earnings of

Cheviot Savings Bank 2143 1676 2426
Amortization of expense related to stock benefit pians 715 810 813

Increase decrease in cash due to changes in

Prepaid expenses and other assets 466 10 12511
Accounts payable and other liabilities 15 32

Prepaid federal income taxes 62
Net cash provided used by operating activities 536 98 12628

Cash flows used in financing activities

Stock option expense net 245 242 239

Treasury stock repurchases 725 5228 4309
Dividends paid Li LQ4 LQi2

Net cash used in financing activities i3 M12

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 2169 5972 7509

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12.203 18.175 10.666

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $10.034 $12203
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NOTE QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS UNAUDITED

The following
table summarizes the Corporations quarterly

results for the
years

ended December 31

2008 and 2007

Three Months Ended

December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

2008 In thousands except per share data

Total interest income $4537 $4570 $4420 $4531

Total interest expense
L25 L22

Net interest income 2579 2577 2311 2146

Provision for losses on loans ..25i i25 ___25

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 2324 2452 2286 1883

Other income 142 146 153 62

General administrative and other expense L9IQ Li L2

Earnings before income taxes 556 708 608 136

Federal income taxes
134 ....211 ..JSi2

Net earnings
$_422 $4

Earnings per
share

Basic and diluted

Three Months Ended

December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

2007 In thousands except per share data

Total interest income $4522 $4515 $4418 $4336

Total interest expense

Net interest income 2053 2070 2082 2087

Provision for losses on loans .JQ1

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 1952 2055 2082 2087

Other income 134 153 129 129

General administrative and other expense
L222

Earnings before income taxes 253 403 409 289

Federal income taxes
J.Z

Net earnings
$Z $2

Earnings per
share

Basic and diluted
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Directors of Cheviot

Financial Corp and Officers of Officers of
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Executive Officer Executive Officer Executive Officer

James Williamson Scott Smith Jeffrey Lenzer

Executive Secretary Chief Financial Officer Vice President Operations

Retired District Administrator principal financial officer

of Oak Hills Local and principal accounting Kevin Kappa
School District

officer Vice President Compliance

Edward Kleemeier Deborah Fischer

Retired District Fire Chief Vice President Lending

City of Cincinnati

Scott Smith

John Smith Chief Financial Officer
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of Hawkstone Associates and principal accounting

officer

Robert Thomas

Owner/Operator

RR Quality Meats
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Steven Hausfeld

CPA/Owner
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INVESTOR AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of shareholders will be held at 300 p.m Eastern Daylight Savings Time on April 28

2009 at the Cheviot Savings Bank Corporate
Offices located at 3723 Glenmore Avenue Cheviot Ohio

Stock Listing

Cheviot Financial Corp common stock is listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol CHEV

As of March 2009 there were 9918751 shares of Cheviot Financial Corp common stock issued including

unallocated ESOP shares and there were approximately
819 registered holders of record

Set forth below are the high and low prices
of our common stock for the year as well as our quarterly

dividend payment history

Dividend

Quarter Ended High Low paid

March 31 2008 $10.55 $7.85 $.09

June 30 2008 $10.00 $7.48 $.09

September 30 2008 9.09 $6.77 $.09

December 31 2008 8.50 $5.15 $.09

Shareholder and General Inquiries
Transfer Agent

Cheviot Financial Corp Registrar and Transfer Company

3723 Glenmore Avenue 10 Commerce Drive

Cincinnati Ohio 45211 Cranford New Jersey

513 661-0457 800 525-7686

Attn Kimberly Siener

Investor Relations

Registered Independent Auditors Corporate Counsel

Clark Schaefer Hackett Co Luse Gorman Pomerenk Schick P.C

105 East Fourth Street 5335 Wisconsin Avenue NW
Suite 1500

Suite 400

Cincinnati Ohio 45202 Washington DC 20015

513 241-3111 202 274-2000

Annual Reports

copy without exhibits of the Cheviot Financial Corp Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission may be obtained without charge

by contacting Kimberly Siener Investor Relations Cheviot Financial Corp 3723 Glenmore Avenue

Cheviot Ohio 45211 It may also be accessed through our website at www.cheviotsavings.com
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OFFICE LOCATIONS

Full Service Banking Locations

Main Office Cheviot Branch Offices Monfort Heights
3723 Glenmore Avenue 5550 Cheviot Road

Cheviot Ohio 45211 Cincinnati Ohio 45247

513 661-0457 513 389-3325

Bridgetown
6060 Bridgetown Road

Cincinnati Ohio 45248

513 389-3333

Harrison

1194 Stone Drive

Harrison Ohio 45030

513 202-5490

Delhi

585 Anderson Ferry Road

Cincinnati Ohio 45238

513 347-4992

Taylor Creek

7072 Harrison Avenue

Cincinnati Ohio 45247

513 353-5140
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CheviotP
Financial Corp

3723 Glenmore Avenue

Cheviot Ohio 45211

March 18 2009

Dear Shareholder

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Cheviot Financial Corp The Annual Meeting will

be held at Cheviot Savings Bank 3723 Glenmore Avenue Cheviot Ohio 45211 at 300 p.m local time on April28 2009

The enclosed Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement describe the formal business to be transacted

We are furnishing proxy materials to our shareholders over the Internet You may read print and download our 2008 Annual

Report to Shareholders and our Proxy Statement at www.cfpproxy.com/5556 On March 18 2009 we mailed our

shareholders notice containing instructions on how to access these materials and how to vote their shares online The notice

provides instructions on how you can request paper copy of these materials by mail by telephone or by email If you

requested your materials via email the email contains voting instructions and links to the materials on the Internet

You may vote your shares by Internet by telephone by regular mail or in person at the Annual Meeting Instructions regarding

the various methods of voting are contained on the notice card

The Annual Meeting is being held so that shareholders will be given an opportunity to elect directors and ratifi the selection of

Clark Schaefer Hackett Co as our independent registered public accounting firm

The Board of Directors has determined that the matters to be considered at the Annual Meeting are in the best interest of

Cheviot Financial Corp and its shareholders For the reasons set forth in the proxy statement the Board of Directors

unanimously recommends vote FOR the proposals presented at the Annual Meeting

On behalf of the Board of Directors we urge you to vote your shares as soon as possible even if you currently plan to attend

the Annual Meeting Your vote is important regardless of the number of shares that you own Voting by proxy will not

prevent you from voting in person but will assure that your vote is counted if you are unable to attend the meeting

Sincerely

aII PrOcessing

Thomas Lmneman Section

President and ChiefExecutive Officer

Washington DC
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Cheviot Financial Corp
3723 Glenmore Avenue

Cheviot Ohio 45211

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To Be Held On April 28 2009

To Our Shareholders

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Cheviot Financial Corp will be held on Tuesday April 28 2009
at 300 p.m Eastern Time at Cheviot Savings Bank 3723 Glenmore Avenue Cheviot Ohio 45211 for the

following purposes

To elect two directors each to serve three-year term

To ratif the selection of Clark Schaefer Hackett Co as Cheviot Financial Corp.s independent

registered public accounting firm and

To consider any other matters that may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments or

postponements of the meeting

The Board of Directors has established the close of business on March 2009 as the record date for

determining the shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or

postponement of the Annual Meeting Only shareholders of record at the close of business on the record date are

entitled to vote on matters to be presented at the Annual Meeting

IT IS IMPORTANT THAT YOUR SHARES BE REPRESENTED AND VOTED AT THE
ANNUAL MEETING SHAREHOLDERS HAVE CHOICE OF VOTING BY PROXY CARD
TELEPHONE OR THE INTERNET AS DESCRIBED ON YOUR NOTICE CARD CHECK
YOUR NOTICE CARD OR THE INFORMATION FORWARDED BY YOUR BROKER BANK
OR OTHER HOLDER OF RECORD TO SEE WHICH OPTIONS ARE AVAILABLE TO YOU
ANY STOCKHOLDER PRESENT AT THE ANNUAL MEETING MAY WITHDRAW HIS OR
HER PROXY AND VOTE PERSONALLY ON ANY MATTER PROPERLY BROUGHT
BEFORE THE ANNUAL MEETING

By Order of the Board of Directors

James Williamson

Executive Secretary

Cheviot Ohio

March 18 2009



PROXY STATEMENT
of

CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP
3723 Glenmore Avenue

Cheviot Ohio 45211

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
April 28 2009

We are providing this Proxy Statement to the shareholders of Cheviot Financial Corp in connection with

the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders The Annual

Meeting will be held on Tuesday April 28 2009 at 300 p.m Eastern Daylight Savings Time at Cheviot Savings

Bank 3723 Glenmore Avenue Cheviot Ohio 45211 The Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders this Proxy

Statement the accompanying proxy card and our Annual Report to Shareholders for the year ended December 31

2008 are first being made available for shareholders on or about March 18 2009 to our shareholders of record on

March 2009

VOTING AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES

We are making our proxy materials available to our shareholders on the Internet You may read print and

download our 2008 Annual Report to Shareholders and our Proxy Statement at www.cfpproxy.com15556 On

March 18 2009 we mailed notice to stockholders containing instructions on how to access our proxy materials

and vote online On an ongoing basis shareholders may request to receive proxy materials in printed form by mail

or electronically by email

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised by executing and delivering later dated

proxy to the President of Cheviot Financial Corp prior to the Annual Meeting ii delivering written notice of

revocation of the proxy to the President of Cheviot Financial Corp prior to the Annual Meeting iii using the

Internet or telephone voting options explained in the notice or iv attending and voting in
person at the Annual

Meeting Attendance at the Annual Meeting in and of itself will not constitute revocation of proxy Proxies will

be voted as instructed by the shareholder or shareholders granting the proxy Unless contrary instructions are

specified if the proxy is executed and returned and not revoked prior to the Annual Meeting the shares of

common stock $0.01 par value per share represented thereby will be voted the election of the directors

nominated for election to the Board of Directors FOR the ratification of the selection of our independent

registered public accounting firm for 2009 and in accordance with the best judgment of the named proxies on

any
other matters properly brought before the Annual Meeting

We are the parent company of Cheviot Savings Bank We are the majority-owned subsidiary of Cheviot

Mutual Holding Company Since Cheviot Mutual Holding Company owns 61.5% of our outstanding shares of

common stock the votes cast by Cheviot Mutual Holding Company will be determinative in the voting on Proposal

election of directors and Proposal ratification of selection of our independent registered public accounting

firm

The presence in person or by proxy of holders of majority of the outstanding shares of common stock is

required to constitute quorum for the transaction of business at the Annual Meeting Abstentions and broker non

votes shares held by broker or nominee that does not have the authority either express or discretionary to vote

on particular matter are counted for purposes of determining the
presence or absence of quorum for the

transaction of business at the Annual Meeting The two nominees for election to the Board of Directors who receive

the greatest number of affirmative votes cast at the Annual Meeting will be elected as directors Approval of the

ratification of our registered public accounting firm requires that the affirmative vote of the majority of the shares

represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal Abstentions and broker non-votes will not be



counted as votes cast in the election of nominees for director or other proposals Proxies and ballots will be received

and tabulated by The Registrar and Transfer Company our transfer agent for the Annual Meeting

As of the record date we had 8872504 shares of common stock issued and outstanding of which Cheviot

Mutual Holding Company owns 5455313 shares Each holder of shares of our common stock outstanding will be

entitled to one vote for each share held of record

We will bear the expense of preparing printing and distributing this Proxy Statement and the proxies

solicited hereby Proxies will be solicited by Internet by telephone or by mail and may also be solicited by our

directors officers and other employees without additional remuneration in
person or by telephone or facsimile

transmission We will also request brokerage firms banks nominees custodians and fiduciaries to forward proxy

materials to the beneficial owners of shares of common stock as of the record date and will reimburse such
persons

for the cost of forwarding the proxy materials in accordance with customary practice Your cooperation in promptly

voting your shares and submitting your proxy will help to avoid additional expense

Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of common stock as of the record date by each

beneficial owner of more than five percent 5% of such outstanding stock ii each director and each executive

officer and iiiall of our directors and executive officers as group Except as otherwise noted the beneficial

owners directors and executive officers listed have sole voting and investment power with respect to shares

beneficially owned by them Except as described in the footnotes below none of the shares beneficially owned by

directors executive officers or nominees to the Board of Directors have been pledged as security or collateral for

any loans

Amount and Nature of

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner5tt Beneficial Ownership Percent of Class525

Cheviot Mutual Holding Company 5455313 61.49%

Cheviot Financial Corp Employee Stock Ownership Plan 357075 4.02%

Steven Hausfeld 13262

Edward Kleemeier 36408

Thomas Linneman 158056 1.78%

John Smith 40780

Robert Thomas 35180

James Williamson 33384

Deborah Fischer 48326
10

Kevin Kappa 95895 1.08%

Jeffrey
Lenzer 84715

512

Scott Smith 80253
13

All Directors and Executive Officers as Group 10 persons 626259
14 7.06%

Indicates beneficial ownership of less than 1%

The address of all persons listed is do Cheviot Financial Corp 3723 Glenmore Avenue Cheviot Ohio 45211

Based on 8872504 shares of common stock outstanding on March 2009

These shares are held in suspense account and are allocated among participants annually on the basis of compensation as the

employee stock ownership plan debt is repaid As of the record date 178538 shares have been allocated to employee stock

ownership plan participants Messrs Thomas Linneman and Scott Smith have been appointed to serve as employee stock

ownership plan administrators for the employee stock ownership plan First Bankers Trust is the employee stock ownership plan

trustee The Employee Stock Ownership Plan Committee directs the vote of all unallocated shares and shares allocated to

participants if timely voting directions are not received for such shares Messrs Linneman and Smith disclaim beneficial ownership

for share voted by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan Committee

These shares include 200 shares as to which Mr Hausfeld has shared voting and investment power Includes 1710 shares of

restricted stock and options to acquire 5352 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of the record date

These shares include 1428 shares owned by jointly Mr Kleemeiers spouse and third person for which he does not have voting or

investment power and disclaims beneficial ownership Includes 7140 shares of restricted stock and options to acquire 17840

shares which were exercisable within 60 days of the record date

These shares include 12500 shares owned by Mr Linnemans spouse for which he does not have voting or investment power and

as to which he disclaims beneficial ownership and 17356 employee stock ownership plan shares over which Mr Linneman has

shared voting power but no investment power In addition includes 35700 shares of restricted stock and options to acquire

80000 shares which are exercisable within 60 days of the record date

Footnotes continued on next page



These shares include 2500 shares of common stock owned by Mr Smiths spouse for which he does not have voting or

investment power and as to which he disclaims beneficial ownership Includes 7140 shares of restricted stock and options to

acquire 17840 shares of common stock which were exercisable within 60 days of the record date Mr Smith has pledged 2500

shares as security for loan

Includes 7140 shares of restricted stock and options to acquire 17840 shares of common stock which were exercisable within 60

days of the record date

These shares include 877 shares of common stock owned by Mr Williamsons spouse for which he does not have voting or

investment power Includes 7140 shares of restricted stock and options to acquire 17840 shares of common stock which were

exercisable within 60 days of the record date

10 These shares include 5567 shares owned by Mrs Fischers spouse for which she does not have voting or investment power and

as to which she disclaims beneficial ownership and 11680 shares of common stock allocated to Mrs Fischers account under

the Cheviot Savings Bank 401k Retirement Savings Plan and 7199 employee stock ownership plan shares Includes 4280

shares of restricted stock and options to acquire 9600 shares which are exercisable within 60 days of the record date

11
These shares include 8385 shares of common stock owned by Mr Kappas spouse for which he does not have voting or

investment power and as to which he disclaims beneficial ownership and 2974 shares of common stock allocated to Mr

Kappas account under the Cheviot Savings Bank 401k Retirement Savings Plan and 10359 employee stock ownership plan

shares Includes 17917 shares of restricted stock and options to acquire 46400 shares which are exercisable within 60 days of the

record date

12
These shares include 4402 shares of common stock owned by Mr Lenzers spouse for which he does not have voting or investment

power and as to which he disclaims beneficial ownership and 11085 employee stock ownership plan shares Includes

16426 shares of restricted stock and options to acquire 48400 shares which are exercisable within 60 days of the record date Mr

Lenzer has pledged 16188 shares as security for loan

13
These shares include 11750 shares of common stock owned by Mr Smiths spouse for which he does not have voting or

investment power 1500 shares owned by Mr Smiths children and 8973 employee stock ownership plan shares Includes 14280

shares of restricted stock and options to acquire 32000 shares which are exercisable within 60 days of the record date

14
These shares include shares of common stock held directly as well as by spouses or minor children in trust and other indirect

ownership In the aggregate our directors and executive officers disclaim beneficial ownership of and do not have voting or

investment power for 49109 of the shares

PROPOSAL 1- ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our Charter requires that the Board of Directors be divided into three classes as nearly equal in number as

possible each class to serve for three-year period with approximately one-third of the directors elected each year

The Board of Directors currently consists of six members Two directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting

each to serve for three-year term expiring in 2012 and until their successors have been elected and qualified

The Board has nominated Steven Hausfeld and Thomas Linneman each of whom is current

director each to serve until the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders Information regarding the business

experience of each nominee as well as each of the other directors is provided below

Unless otherwise directed the persons named in the proxy intend to vote all proxies FOR the election of

Messrs Hausfeld and Linneman to the Board of Directors The nominees have consented to serve as our directors if

elected If at the time of the Annual Meeting any of the nominees is unable or declines to serve as director the

discretionary authority provided in the enclosed proxy will be exercised to vote for substitute candidate designated

by the Board of Directors The Board of Directors has no reason to believe any of the nominees will be unable or

will decline to serve as director

Each director including the director nominees who was director of Cheviot Savings Bank on the date

Cheviot Savings Bank reorganized into the mutual holding company structure continued to serve as director of

Cheviot Savings Bank and became director of each of Cheviot Financial Corp and Cheviot Mutual Holding

Company as of January 2004 the date of the completion of the mutual holding company reorganization and

offering other than Mr Hausfeld who was elected to the Board in July 2005



Director Nominees

Terms Expire at the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Steven Hausfeld 51 is Certified Public Accountant who owns local accounting practice Mr
Hausfeld previously served as school board member for the Oak Hills Local School District through December

2005 Mr Hausfeld has served as director of Cheviot Savings Bank since July 2005 Mr Hausfeld serves as the

fmancial expert on the Audit Committee

Thomas Linneman 55 has served as our President and ChiefExecutive Officer and of Cheviot Mutual

Holding Company since our reorganization into the mutual holding company structure in 2004 and of Cheviot

Savings Bank since 1998 Mr Linneman has served as director of Cheviot Savings Bank since 1998

Directors Not Standing for Election

Terms Expire at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Edward Kleemeier 74 is retired District Fire Chief for the City of Cincinnati Ohio Mr Kleemeier

has served as director of Cheviot Savings Bank since 1978

James Williamson 64 is retired District Administrator Director of Oak Hills Local School District

in Cincinnati Ohio since 2000 Mr Williamson was high school principal in Cincinnati Ohio from 1989 to 2000

Mr Williamson also serves as the Executive Secretary of Cheviot Mutual Holding Company and Cheviot Financial

Corp Mr Williamson has served as director of Cheviot Savings Bank since 1997

Terms expire at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

John Smith 64 is the Secretary/Treasurer of Hawkstone Associates Inc dba Triumph Energy Corp

gasoline wholesaler and retailer Mr Smith is the father of Scott Smith our Chief Financial Officer and chief

financial officer of Cheviot Mutual Holding Company and Cheviot Savings Bank Mr Smith has served as

director of Cheviot Savings Bank since 1995

Robert Thomas 66 is the owner/operator of RR Quality Meats Catering in Cheviot Ohio Mr
Thomas has served as director of Cheviot Savings Bank since 1989

Executive Officers

Jeffrey Lenzer 47 has been our Vice President of Operations since 2005 Prior to that he served as

the Vice President of Lending

Kevin Kappa 51 has been our Vice President of Compliance since 1993

Scott Smith 39 has been our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since 1999 Mr Smith is the son

of Director John Smith

Deborah Fischer 55 has been our Vice President of Lending since 2006 Prior to that she served as

the Assistant Vice President of Lending

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE THE ELECTION OF

MESSRS HAUSFELD AND LINNEMAN TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Structure and Compensation

We are controlled company under NASDAQ Marketplace Rules because more than 50% of our voting

power is held by Cheviot Mutual Holding Company Therefore we are exempt from the NASDAQ Marketplace



Rules requiring that we have majority of independent directors on the Board any compensation committee

and nominating committee to be composed solely of independent directors the compensation of executive

officers being determined by majority of the independent directors or compensation committee composed solely

of independent directors and the election or recommendation of director nominees for the Boards selection

either by majority of the independent directors or nominating committee composed solely of independent

directors

Affirmative Determinations Regarding Director Independence and Other Matters

Based on information supplied to it by the directors the Board of Directors has determined each of the

following directors to be an independent director as such term is defined in the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules

Steven Hausfeld Robert Thomas

Edward Kleemeier James Williamson

In this proxy statement these four directors are referred to individually as an Independent Director and

collectively as the Independent Directors The Independent Directors constitute majority of the Board of

Directors Although Mr Smith is not an employee of the company or any of its affiliates Mr Smith is determined

not to be independent because of family relationship Mr Smith is the father of Scott Smith our Chief

Financial Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of Cheviot Mutual Holding Company and Cheviot Savings Bank

The Board of Directors has also determined that each member of the Audit Committee of the Board meets

the independence requirements applicable to that committee prescribed by the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules the

Securities and Exchange Commission and the Internal Revenue Service

In determining the independence of our directors we considered our relationships with these individuals

which consist of making loans to our directors We will originate mortgage loans secured by the borrowers

residence to our employees executive officers and directors All of these loans are made in accordance with

applicable banking regulations All employee and director loans must be approved by the Board of Directors

Board and Committee Meetings

We have six directors and the following two committees Audit Committee and Nominating

Committee The Board of Directors has the responsibility for establishing broad corporate policies and for our

overall performance although it is not involved in the day-to-day operating details Directors are kept informed of

our business by various reports and documents sent to them as well as by operating and fmancial reports presented

at Board and Committee meetings by the Chief Executive Officer and other officers

Our directors also serve as the Board of Directors for Cheviot Savings Bank For the year ended December

31 2008 the Board of Directors held 13 regular and special meetings No director attended fewer than 75 percent

of the total meetings of the Board of Directors and the committees on which such director served

Audit Committee The Audit Committee consists of three of the Independent Directors Messrs Hausfeld

Thomas and Williamson The committee is responsible for engaging our independent registered public accounting

firm overseeing our financial reporting process evaluating the adequacy of our internal controls reviewing our

compliance with federal state and local laws and regulations and monitoring the legal and ethical conduct of our

management and employees In addition the committee reviews our fmancial affairs including our capital structure

borrowing limits financing of corporate acquisitions and the performance of our benefit plans The Audit

Committee membership meets the audit committee composition requirements of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules

Mr Hausfeld has been designated as the audit committees financial expert Mr Hausfeld is certified public

accountant The Audit Committee also serves as the audit committee for the Board of Directors of Cheviot Savings

Bank



The Audit Committee met 10 times for the
year

ended December 31 2008 Pursuant to applicable

regulations the Audit Committee has adopted written charter copy of which is available on our website

www.cheviotsavings.com

Nominating Committee The Nominating Committee consists of the entire Board of Directors as required

by our Bylaws except for directors who are under consideration for re-election including both independent and

non-independent directors As controlled company we are not required to have the Nominating Committee

comprised solely of the Independent Directors The non-independent members of the Nominating Committee are

Messrs Linneman and Smith The Committee recommends nominees for the election of directors and officers

monitors the performance of the other Board committees and informs the Board of shareholder concerns The

Nominating Committee does not operate under formal written charter We do not pay any third party fee to assist

us in identifying and evaluating potential nominees

The Nominating Committee of the Company met time during 2008

Compensation Committee We do not have Compensation Committee because we do not independently

compensate our executive officers directors or employees These persons are compensated by Cheviot Savings

Bank As controlled company we are not required to adhere to the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules with respect to

the Boards determination of the compensation of officers

Other Board Committees of Cheviot Savings Bank In addition to the committees of the Board of Cheviot

Financial Corp the Board of Directors of Cheviot Savings Bank also maintains loan committee compensation

committee and information technology committee The loan committee has the principal responsibility of approving

certain loans to be provided by Cheviot Savings Bank in its ordinary course of business Since we do not

independently compensate our executive officers directors or employees the compensation committee has the

principal responsibility for setting and reviewing the compensation benefits provided to officers and employees of

Cheviot Savings Bank who are also employees of Cheviot Financial Corp The information technology committee

has the responsibility of monitoring the technology environment relating to controls updates and expansion

Attendance at Annual Meeting of Shareholders

We do not have policy regarding director attendance at the annual meetings of shareholders Directors

Hausfeld Kleemeier Smith Thomas Williamson and Linneman attended the prior years annual meeting of

shareholders

Executive Sessions of Non-Management Directors

Our non-management directors meet in executive session without management present from time to time as

deemed necessary by the non-management directors but at least two times per year Shareholders or other interested

parties may communicate with the presiding director or to the non-management directors as group

The Director Nominations Process

The purpose of the Nominating Committee is to consider both management and shareholder recommended

candidates for possible inclusion in our recommended slate of director nominees

Minimum Criteriafor Candidates At minimum each candidate must agree to accept the nomination

for Board candidacy meet the standards of independence established by NASDAQ and meet all other

applicable laws rules and regulations related to service as Director

Desirable Qualities and Skills In addition the Nominating Committee will consider the following skills

and characteristics of candidates judgment diversity experience skills accountability and

integrity financial literacy industry knowledge other board appointments and independence In

addition in determining whether an incumbent director should stand for re-election the Nominating Committee will



consider the directors attendance at meetings achievement of satisfactory performance and other matters

determined by the Board

Internal Process for Identfying Candidates On periodic basis the Nominating Committee solicits ideas

for possible candidates from number of sources members of the Board senior level executives individuals

personally known to the members of the Board and research including database and Internet searches

General Nomination Right ofAll Shareholders Any of our shareholders may nominate one or more

persons
for election as director at an annual meeting of shareholders if the shareholder complies with the notice

information and consent provisions contained in our Bylaws We have an advance notice bylaw provision In order

for the director nomination to be timely shareholders notice to our Executive Secretary must be delivered to our

principal executive offices not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the date of our next annual meeting

If shareholder provides timely notice as described above in accordance with our Bylaws the candidate may be

voted upon in the election of directors at the annual meeting and the candidates name will be included on the ballot

for election If shareholder fails to provide timely notice but still provides written notice to our Executive

Secretary at least five days prior to the annual meeting the candidate will be added to the ballots provided at the

annual meeting but will not be included on any proxy cards delivered by the company Further the persons named

in the proxy cards will be permitted to exercise discretionary voting authority with respect to any candidate

submitted by shareholder less than 30 days before the date of the annual meeting

shareholder entitled to vote may propose candidate from the floor at the annual meeting itself only if

the Nominating Committee has failed to nominate slate of candidates at least 20 days before the date of the annual

meeting If the Nominating Committee recommends slate of candidates at least 20 days before the date of the

annual meeting no votes will be allowed for candidates who are proposed from the floor during the annual meeting

Evaluation of Candidates The Nominating Committee will consider all candidates identified through the

processes
described above and will evaluate each of them including incumbents based on the same criteria If

based on the Nominating Committees initial evaluation candidate continues to be of interest to the Nominating

Committee member of the Nominating Committee will interview the candidate and communicate such members

evaluation to the other Nominating Committee members Later reviews will be conducted by other members of the

Nominating Committee and our executive officers Ultimately background and reference checks will be conducted

and the Nominating Committee will meet to fmalize its list of recommended candidates for the Boards

consideration

Timing of the IdentfIcation and Evaluation Process Our fiscal year ends on December 31 The

Nominating Committee usually meets in February or March to consider and determine among other things

candidates to be included in our recommended slate of director nominees for election by shareholders at the annual

meeting

There have been no material changes to these procedures since they were previously disclosed in our proxy

statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Audit Committee Report

During 2008 Messrs Hausfeld Thomas and Williamson served on our Audit Committee with

Mr Williamson serving as Chair The Audit Committee operates pursuant to written charter which complies with

the applicable provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related rules of the SEC and Nasdaq The Audit

Committee is responsible for overseeing our accounting and financial reporting processes including the quarterly

review and the annual audit of our consolidated financial statements by Clark Schaefer Hackett Co our

independent registered public accounting firm As part of fulfilling its responsibilities the Audit Committee

reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2008 with

management and Clark Schaefer Hackett Co and discussed those matters required by Statement on Auditing

Standards No 61 Communication with Audit Committees as amended with Clark Schaefer Hackett Co The

Audit Committee received the written disclosures and the letter required by Independent Standards Board Statement

No Independence Discussions with Audit Committee from Clark Schaefer Hackett Co and discussed that



firms independence with representatives of the firm

Based upon the Audit Committees review of the audited consolidated financial statements and its

discussions with management the internal audit function and our independent registered public accounting firm the

Audit Committee recommended that the Board of Directors include our audited financial statements for the year

ended December 31 2008 in the Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC

This report shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by

reference this proxy statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended expect to the extent that we specifically incorporate this information by

reference and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such Acts

Respectfully submitted

Steven Hausfeld

Robert Thomas

James Williamson

Compensation Committee

Overview of Compensation Program The Compensation Committee for purposes
of this analysis the

Committee of the Board of Directors of Cheviot Savings Bank has the responsibility for establishing

implementing and continually monitoring adherence with our compensation philosophy The Committee ensures

that the total compensation paid is fair reasonable and competitive The members of the Compensation Committee

of Cheviot Savings Bank are directors Hausfeld Thomas and Kleemeier all of whom are independent directors

The Compensation Committee does not operate under written charter The Compensation Committee of Cheviot

Savings Bank met three times during the year ended December 31 2008

Throughout this proxy statement the individual who served as our Chief Executive Officer during 2008 as

well as the other individuals included in the Summary Compensation Table are referred to as the named executive

officers

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives The Committee believes that the most effective executive

compensation program is one that is designed to reward the achievement of specific annual long-term and strategic

goals The Committee evaluates both performance and current compensation to ensure that we maintain our ability

to attract and retain superior employees in key positions The compensation provided to key employees remains

competitive relative to the compensation paid to similarlysituated executives of our industry and in our market area

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions The Committee makes all compensation decisions

for the named executive officers and approves recommendations made by the Chief Executive Officer for other

employees The ChiefExecutive Officer annually reviews the performance of each one of the named executive

officers The conclusions reached and recommendations made based on these reviews are presented to the

Committee The Committee can exercise its discretion in modifying any recommendation or awards

Compensation Components For the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 the principal components of

compensation include base salary performance-based incentive compensation retirement stock based incentive

plan and other benefits

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our directors executive officers

and employees including our principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or

controller or other persons performing similar functions The Code of Ethics requires our directors executive

officers and employees to avoid conflicts of interest comply with all laws and other legal requirements conduct

business in an honest and ethical manner and otherwise act with integrity and in our best interest Under the terms of



the Code of Ethics directors executive officers and employees are required to report any conduct that they believe

in good faith to be an actual or apparent
violation of the Code of Ethics

Executive Compensation

Summary Compensation Table The following table shows for the years
ended December 31 2008 and

2007 the compensation of Thomas Linneman our principal executive officer and our two highest compensated

executive officers who received total compensation of $100000 for services to us or any of our subsidiaries during

the year
ended December 31 2008

Summary Corn ensation Table
_____________

Stock Option All other

Name and Salary Bonus awards awards2 compensation Total

Principal Position Year

Thomas Linneman 2008 199484 9974 103262 67200 60890 440810

PresidentandChief 2007 194333 4858 103262 67200 6232010 431973

Executive Officer __________

Kevin Kappa 2008 115047 5752 61900 38976 27177 248852

Vice President-- 2007 1117556 2794 61900 38976 2837512 243800

Compliance of the Bank _________

Jeffrey Lenzer 2008 128990 6450 61900 40656 29765 267761

Vice President--
2007 1257048 3143 61900 40656 31056 262459

Operations of the Bank _________

The amounts reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 in accordance with FAS 123 of awards pursuant to the Stock-Based Incentive Plan and this includes amounts from awards

granted prior to 2007 Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note to our audited financial statements for

the year ended December 31 2008

The amounts reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 in accordance with FAS 123 of awards pursuant to the Stock-Based Incentive Plan and this includes amounts from awards

granted prior to 2007 Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note to our audited financial statements for

the year ended December31 2008

The amounts include salary
earned during the fiscal year

ended December 31 2008 In relation to the salary amounts earned Mr Linneman

contributed $4147 to the Cheviot Savings Bank 40 1k Plan

The amounts include salary
earned during the fiscal year ended December 31 2007 In relation to the salary

amounts earned Mr Linneman

contributed $3817 to Cheviot Savings Banks 401k Plan

The amounts include salary earned during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 In relation to the salary amounts earned Mr Kappa

contributed $10606 to Cheviot Savings Banks 40 1k Plan

The amounts include salary earned during the fiscal year ended December 31 2007 In relation to the salary amounts earned Mr Kappa

contributed $10787 to Cheviot Savings Banks 40 1k Plan

The amounts include salary
earned during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 In relation to the salary amounts earned Mr Lenzer

contributed $7928 to Cheviot Savings Banks 401k Plan

The amounts include salary
earned during the fiscal year ended December31 2007 In relation to the salary amounts earned Mr Lenzer

contributed $8082 to Cheviot Savings Banks 40 1k Plan

The amounts include dividends paid on stock awards contributions by Cheviot Savings Bank to Cheviot Savings Banks 401k Plan and

employee stock ownership plan premiums paid on behalf of Mr Linneman and directors fees of $8836 $12804 $21268 $982 and

$17000

10 The amounts include dividends paid on stock awards contributions by Cheviot Savings Bank to Cheviot Savings Banks 40 1k Plan and

employee stock ownership plan premiums paid on behalf of Mr Linneman and directors fees of$10353 $12952 $21418 $597 and

$17000

11 The amounts include dividends paid on stock awards contributions by Cheviot Savings Bank to Cheviot Savings Banks 401k Plan and

employee stock ownership plan and premiums paid on behalf of Mr Kappa of $5296 $9076 $12265 and $540

12 The amounts include dividends paid on stock awards contributions by Cheviot Savings Bank to Cheviot Savings Banks 401k Plan and

employee stock ownership plan and premiums paid on behalf of Mr Kappa of 6206 $9324 $12316 and $529

13 The amounts include dividends paid on stock awards contributions by Cheviot Savings Bank to Cheviot Savings Banks 401k Plan and

employee stock ownership plan and premiums paid on behalf of Mr Lenzer of $5296 $10362 $13753 and $354

14 The amounts include dividends paid on stock awards contributions by Cheviot Savings Bank to Cheviot Savings Banks 40 1k Plan and

employee stock ownership plan and premiums paid on behalf of Mr Lenzer of $6206 $10661 $13842 and $347

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

Employment Agreement with Mr Linneman Effective September 16 2008 Cheviot Savings Bank entered

into an employment agreement
with Mr Linneman which provides for the employment and retention of Mr

Linneman for three-year term Commencing on the first anniversary date of the employment agreement and



continuing on each anniversary thereafter the disinterested members of the Board of Directors of Cheviot Savings
Bank may extend the employment agreement an additional year such that the remaining term of the agreement shall

be 36 months unless the Board elects not to extend the term by giving written notice to Mr Linneman The
employment agreement provides that Mr Linnemans base salary will be reviewed annually and may be increased
but not decreased The base salary that will be effective for such employment agreement will be $199680 Cheviot
Savings Bank also provides bonus program to Mr Linneman which provides him with the opportunity to earn up
to 50% of his base salary on an annual basis the amount of which shall be determined by specific performance
standards and formula to be agreed to by Mr Linneman and Cheviot Savings Banks Board of Directors annually
Performance standards are measured on calendar year and no bonus shall be payable if Mr Linneman is not

employed on December 31 of the pertinent year Mr Linneman is entitled to participate in such life insurance
medical dental 401k profit-sharing and stock-based compensation plans and other programs and arrangements as
may be approved from time to time by Cheviot Savings Bank for the benefit of its employees In addition Cheviot

Savings Bank provides Mr Linneman with supplemental life insurance policy with death benefit of not less than
$200000

Under the employment agreement if Mr Linneman dies retires or is terminated for cause as defined in

the employment agreement or if he voluntarily terminates his employment without good reason as defined in the

employment agreement Mr Linneman or his estate shall be entitled to receive the compensation due him through
the last day of the calendar month in which his death retirement or termination occurred In the event of Mr
Linnemans disability Cheviot Savings Bank will pay him as disability pay pursuant to the long-term disability

policy then in effect Such payments shall be reduced by the amount of any short- or long-term disability benefits
payable to him under any other disability programs sponsored by Cheviot Savings Bank In addition during any
period of his disability he and his dependents shall to the greatest extent possible continue to be covered under all

non-taxable medical dental and life insurance plans of Cheviot Savings Bank on the same terms as if he were
actively employed by Cheviot Savings Bank

Under the employment agreement if the employment of Mr Linneman is terminated by Cheviot Savings
Bank without cause or Mr Linneman terminates his employment with good reason Mr Linneman would be
entitled to severance payment equal to the base salary determined by reference to his base salary on the
termination date and bonuses determined by reference to his average bonus over the three years preceding his

termination date that would otherwise have been payable over the remaining term of the agreement Such amounts
shall be paid in one lump sum within ten calendar days of such termination In addition Mr Linneman will be paid
in single cash lump sum distribution within ten calendar days the present value of the cash equivalent of the
amount of benefits Mr Linneman would have received under any retirement program whether tax-qualified or non-
qualified if he was employed for the remaining term of the employment agreement and will continue to participate
in any benefit plans of Cheviot Savings Bank that provide non-taxable health including medical and dental life or
similar coverage for the remaining term of the employment agreement upon terms no less favorable than the most
favorable terms provided to senior executives of Cheviot Savings Bank during such period In the event Cheviot

Savings Bank is unable to provide such continued coverage the Bank will provide Mr Linneman with cash lump
sum benefit of the value of such coverage payable within ten calendar days following Mr Linnemans termination

If within the period ending two years after change in control as defined in the employment agreement
Cheviot Savings Bank shall terminate Mr Linnemans employment without cause or Mr Linneman terminates his

employment with good reason Cheviot Savings Bank shall within ten calendar days of termination of his

employment make lump sum cash payment to him equal to 2.99 times Mr Linnemans
average annual

compensation over the five most recently completed calendar years ending with the year immediately preceding the
effective date of the change in control In addition Mr Linneman will be paid in single cash lump sum
distribution within ten calendar days equal to the present value of the cash equivalent of the amount of benefits Mr
Linneman would have received if he was employed for 36 months following his termination of employment and
shall continue to participate in any benefit plans that provide non-taxable health including medical and dental life

or similar coverage for 36 months upon terms no less favorable than the most favorable terms provided to senior
executives during such period In the event payments made to Mr Linneman include an excess parachute
payment as defined in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code such payments will be cutback by the minimum
dollar amount necessary to avoid this result If Mr Linneman was terminated as result of change of control as of
December 31 2008 total payments he would be entitled to receive would be $630000
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Upon termination of Mr Linneman for any reason he must adhere to two-year non-competition

covenant

All reasonable costs and legal fees paid or incurred by Mr Linneman in any dispute or question of

interpretation relating to the employment agreement will be paid by Cheviot Savings Bank if Mr Linneman is

successful on the merits in legal judgment arbitration or settlement The employment agreement also provides

that Cheviot Savings Bank will indemnify the executive for certain liabilities and expenses as provided therein

Potential Payments upon Termination Mr Linneman would receive payments totaling $626000 in the

event he were terminated consisting of $609000 in salary and bonus payments $13000 in health insurance

premium payments for three years
and $4000 in life insurance premium payments for three years

Change-in-Control Severance Agreements with Messrs Kappa and Lenzer Effective September 16 2008

Cheviot Savings Bank entered into change in control severance agreements with each of Messrs Lenzer and Kappa

to provide benefits to each of them upon change in control of either Cheviot Savings Bank or Cheviot Financial

Corp Each severance agreement provides for three-year term Additionally on or before each anniversary date

of the effective date of the severance agreement the term of the agreement may be extended for an additional one-

year period beyond the then effective expiration date upon determination and resolution of the Board of Directors

that the performance of the employee has met the requirements and standards of the board and that the term of the

agreement should be extended Under the severance agreement if change in control of Cheviot Savings Bank or

Cheviot Financial Corp occurs Messrs Lenzer and Kappa if terminated or if each terminates his employment for

good reason as defined in the severance agreements within 12 months after any change in control will be

entitled to receive single cash lump sum distribution equal to two times the prior calendar years cash

compensation paid to such executive by Cheviot Savings Bank Such sum will be paid within 30 days following

Messrs Lenzers and Kappas date of termination In the event payments made to Messrs Lenzer and Kappa

include an excess parachute payment as defined in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code such payments

will be cutback by the minimum dollar amount necessary to avoid this result If Messrs Kappa and Lenzer were

terminated as result of change of control as of December 31 2008 total payments they would each be entitled to

receive would be $487000

401k Plan

Cheviot Savings Bank maintains the Cheviot Savings Bank 401k Retirement Savings Plan which is

qualified tax-exempt profit sharing plan with salary deferral feature under Section 40 1k of the Code Employees

who have attained age 21 and have completed one year
of employment are eligible to participate Employees are

entitled to enter the 401k Plan on the first January or July occurring after the employee becomes eligible to

participate in the 401k Plan

Under the 401k Plan participants may elect to defer percentage of their compensation each year instead

of receiving that amount in cash equal to the lesser of maximum percentage of compensation as indicated in

notice received from the 401k Plan administrator or ii an indexed dollar amount set by the Internal Revenue

Service which was $15500 for 2008 In addition for participants that are age 50 or older by the end of any taxable

year the participant may elect to defer additional amounts called catch-up contributions to the 401k Plan The

additional amounts may be deferred regardless of any other limitations on the amount that participant may defer to

the 401k Plan The maximum catch-up contribution that participant can make in 2008 was $5000

Each plan year calendar year Cheviot Savings Bank will contribute to the 401k Plan the following

amounts the total amount of the salary reduction participant elected to defer in the discretion of Cheviot

Savings Bank matching contribution equal to percentage of the amount of the salary reduction participant

elected to defer and an amount equal to 3% of participants plan compensation generally the sum of

participants Form W-2 wages and other compensation for the year plus participants before-tax contributions to

the 40 1k Plan and any other benefit plans of Cheviot Savings Bank up to legal limit which was $230000 for

2008 for the year plus 3% of participants plan compensation for the year
in excess of 50% of the Social Security

Taxable Wage Base for old-age retirement benefits for the year $51000 for 2008 plus any additional amount that

does not match participants salary reduction and that is determined by Cheviot Savings Bank in its discretion
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The 401k Plan permits employees to direct the investment of his or her own accounts into various

investment options including the opportunity to invest in Cheviot Financial Corp Stock Fund Each participant

who directs the trustee to invest all or part of his or her account in the Cheviot Financial Corp Stock Fund will have

assets in his or her account applied to the purchase of shares of common stock Participants will be entitled to direct

the trustee as to how to vote his or her allocable shares of common stock

Plan benefits will be paid to each participant in the form of single cash payment at normal retirement
age

unless earlier payment is selected If participant dies prior to receipt of the entire value of his or her 401k Plan

accounts payment will generally be made to the beneficiary in single cash payment as soon as possible following

the participants death Payment will be deferred if the participant had previously elected later payment date If the

beneficiary is not the participants spouse payment will be made within one year of the date of death If the
spouse

is the designated beneficiary payment will be made no later than the date the participant would have attained age 70

1/2 Normal retirement age under the 401k Plan is
age

65 Early retirement age is age 55

Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust

In January 2004 we implemented the Cheviot Financial Corp Employee Stock Ownership Plan in

connection with the reorganization and stock offering Employees who are at least 21 years old who have at least

one year of employment with Cheviot Savings Bank or an affiliated corporation and who have completed at least

1000 hours of service are eligible to participate As part of the reorganization and stock offering the employee

stock ownership plan borrowed funds from us and used those funds to purchase 357075 shares of common stock

Collateral for the loan is the common stock purchased by the employee stock ownership plan The loan is being

repaid principally from the participating employers discretionary contributions to the employee stock ownership

plan over period of up to 10 years The loan bears interest at an annual percentage rate fixed at 4.0% Shares

purchased by the employee stock ownership plan are held in suspense account for allocation among participants as

the loan is repaid

Contributions to the employee stock ownership plan and shares released from the suspense account in an

amount proportional to the repayment of the employee stock ownership plan loan are allocated among employee

stock ownership plan participants on the basis of compensation in the year of allocation Benefits under the plan are

100% vested upon completion of five
years of credited service participants interest in his or her account under

the plan also fully vest in the event of termination of service due to participants early or normal retirement death

disability or upon change in control as defined in the plan Vested benefits are payable in the form of common
stock and/or cash Contributions to the employee stock ownership plan are discretionary subject to the loan terms

and tax law limits Therefore benefits payable under the employee stock ownership plan cannot be estimated

Under generally accepted accounting principles participating employer will be required to record compensation

expense
each

year
in an amount equal to the fair market value of the shares released from the suspense account for

the year

Effect of Change in Control on Certain Executive Compensation Plans

In the event of change in control the employee stock ownership plan will terminate and participants will

become fully vested in their account balances which will be paid to them
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Year End The following table sets forth information with respect to our

outstanding equity awards as of December 31 2008 for our named executive officers

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option awards Stock awards

Equity Equity

Equity
incentive incentive plan

incentive plan awards

plan
awards market or

awards Market number of payout value

Number of Number of number of Number of value of unearned of unearned

securities securities securities shares or shares or shares units shares units

underlying underlying underlying units of units of or other or other

unexercised unexercised unexercised Option Option stock that stock that rights that rights that

options options earned exercise expiration have not have not have not have not

Name exercisable unexercisable options price date vested vested vested vested

ThomasJ Linneman 60000 40000 $11.15 5/5/2015 17850 $115133

President and Chief

Executive Officer
______________ _______________ ______________ __________ _____________ ______________

KevinM Kappa 34800 23200 $11.15 5/5/2015 10700 $69015

Vice President--

Compliance of the Bank
____________ _____________ ____________ ________ ___________ ____________ ____________ ____________ _____________

JeffreyJ Lenzer 36300 24200 $11.15 5/5/2015 10700 $69015

Vice President--

Operations of the Bank
____________ _____________ ____________ ________ ___________ ____________ ____________ ____________ ______________

All options awards listed above vest at rate of 20% per year over the first five years commencing on May 2005 of the ten year option

term

All stock awards listed above vest at rate of 20% per year over five years commencing on May 2005

Plan-Based Awards There were no grants
of plan-based awards for our named executive officers in 2008

Stock Benefit Plans

Stock-Based Incentive Plan The 2005 Cheviot Financial Corp Stock-Based Incentive Plan provides

officers employees and directors of Cheviot Financial Corp or Cheviot Savings Bank with additional incentives to

share in our growth and performance

The 2005 Stock-Based Incentive Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 680426 shares of our common stock

pursuant to grants of incentive and non-statutory stock options reload options or restricted stock awards provided

that no more than 194408 shares may be issued as restricted stock awards and no more than 486018 shares may be

issued pursuant to exercise of stock options

Employees and outside directors and our subsidiaries are eligible to receive awards under the 2005 Stock

Based-Incentive Plan

The Compensation Committee may determine the type and terms and conditions of awards under the 2005

Stock-Based Incentive Plan Awards may be granted in combination of incentive and non-statutory stock options

reload options or restricted stock awards Awards may include the following

Stock Options stock option gives the recipient or optionee the right to purchase shares of

common stock at specified price for specified period of time The exercise price shall not be less than

the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date the stock option is granted Fair market

value for purposes of the 2005 Stock-Based Incentive Plan means the average of the closing high bid and

low asked price of the common stock as reported on the OTC Electronic Bulletin Board or the average
of

the high and low quoted sales prices of the common stock on the Nasdaq Stock Market on the day the
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option is granted or if the common stock is not traded on the date of grant the fair market value shall be

determined by the Compensation Committee in good faith on an appropriate basis

Stock options are either incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options Incentive stock options

have certain tax advantages and must comply with the requirements of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue

Code Only employees are eligible to receive incentive stock options Shares of common stock purchased

upon the exercise of stock option must be paid for in full at the time of exercise either in cash check

payable to Cheviot Financial Corp or electronic funds transfer or ii with stock of Cheviot Financial

Corp which was owned by the participant for at least six months prior to delivery or iiiby reduction in

the number of shares deliverable pursuant to the stock option or iv subject to cashless exercise

through third party Cash may be paid in lieu of any fractional shares under the 2005 Stock-Based

Incentive Plan and generally no fewer than 100 shares may be purchased on exercise of an award unless

the total number of shares available for purchase or exercise pursuant to an award is less than 100 shares

Stock options are subject to vesting conditions and restrictions as determined by the Compensation

Committee

ii Reload Options Reload options entitle the holder who has delivered shares that he or she owns

as payment of the exercise price for option stock to new option to acquire additional shares equal in

amount to the shares he or she has traded Reload options may also be granted to replace option shares

retained by the employer for payment of the option holders withholding tax The option price at which

additional shares of stock can be purchased by the option holder through the exercise of reload option is

equal to the market value of the shares on the date the original option is exercised The option period

during which the reload option may be exercised expires at the same time as that of the original option that

the holder has exercised Reload options issued on the exercise of incentive stock options may be incentive

stock options or non-statutory stock options

iii Stock Awards Stock awards under the 2005 Stock-Based Incentive Plan will be granted only in

whole shares of common stock Stock awards will be subject to conditions established by the

Compensation Committee which are set forth in the award agreements Any stock award granted under the

2005 Stock-Based Incentive Plan will be subject to vesting as determined by the Compensation Committee

Awards will be evidenced by agreements approved by the Compensation Committee which set forth the

terms and conditions of each award

Transferability of wards Generally all awards except non-statutory stock options granted under the

2005 Stock-Based Incentive Plan will be nontransferable except by will or in accordance with the laws of intestate

succession Stock awards may be transferable pursuant to qualified domestic relations order At the

Compensation Committees sole discretion non-statutory stock options may be transferred for valid estate planning

purposes that are permitted by the Code and the Exchange Act During the life of the participant awards can only

be earned by him or her The Compensation Committee may permit participant to designate beneficiary to

exercise or receive any rights that may exist under the 2005 Stock-Based Incentive Plan upon the participants

death

Change in Control Upon the occurrence of an event constituting change in control of the company as

defined in the 2005 Stock-Based Incentive Plan all stock options will become fully vested and all stock awards

then outstanding shall vest free of restrictions conversion of Cheviot Mutual Holding Company from mutual to

stock form will not be considered as change of control

Effect of Termination of Service Unless the Compensation Committee specifies otherwise at the time an

award is granted upon the occurrence of the participants termination of service due to death or disability all

unvested stock options and stock awards made to the participant will become fully vested Subject to OTS

regulations and policy or the receipt of any required waivers from the OTS and unless the Compensation

Committee specifies otherwise at the time an award is granted in the event of normal retirement of participant

any unvested award of stock options and/or restricted stock shall become fully vested in the participant Unless the

Committee specifies otherwise person who is member of the Board of Directors shall not be deemed to have

retired until service as director or director emeritus has ceased
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We do not have any pension benefits defined contribution or other non-qualified deferred compensation

plans

Compensation of Directors

Directors Summary Compensation Table Set forth below is summary compensation for each of our non-

employee directors for the year
ended December 31 2008

Director Compensatiri

Change in

pension value

and non-

qualified

Non-equity deferred

Fees earned Stock Option incentive plan compensation All other

or paid in awards awards compensation earnings compensation Total

Name cash $1 $2
Steven Hausfeld $22500 $16487 5120 846 $44953

Edward Kleemier $20000 $20652 $14986 $3922 $1767 $61327

John Smith $20000 $20652 $14986 $3411 $7444 $66493

Robert Thomas $22500 $20652 $14986 $3927 $8981 $71046

James Williamson $22500 $20652 $14986 $3430 $7444 $69012

The amounts reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 in

accordance with FAS 123R of awards pursuant to the Stock-Based Incentive Plan and thus may include amounts from awards granted

prior to 2008 Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note to our audited financial statement for the year

ended December 31 2008

The amounts reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 in

accordance with FAS 123R of awards pursuant to the Stock-Based Incentive Plan and thus may include amounts from awards granted

prior to 2008 Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note to our audited financial statement for the year

ended December 31 2008

The amount reflects dividends paid on stock awards during the fiscal year ended December31 2008 totaling $846

The amount reflects dividends paid on stock awards during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 totaling $1767

The amount reflects dividends paid on stock awards during the fiscal year ended December31 2008 totaling $1767 It also reflects $5677

which represents 50% of health insurance premiums paid by Cheviot Financial Corp

The amount reflects dividends paid on stock awards during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 totaling $1767 It also includes

$7214 which represents 50% of health insurance premiums paid by Cheviot Financial Corp

The amount reflects dividends paid on stock awards during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 totaling $1767 It also includes

$5677 which represents 50% of health insurance premiums paid by Cheviot Financial Corp

The Boards of Cheviot Financial Corp Cheviot Mutual Holding Company and Cheviot Savings Bank are

comprised of the same persons To date Cheviot Savings Bank has compensated its directors for their services

Cheviot Financial Corp has not paid any additional compensation to the directors for this service though it may

choose to do so in the future

Compensation of Non-Employee Directors During the year
ended December 31 2008 directors received

$17000 annual retainer for board membership on Cheviot Savings Bank an additional $2500 retainer for

membership on the Audit Committee and $1500 retainer for each membership on any other committee
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Compensation of Directors Who are Also Employees During the year ended December 31 2008 Mr
Linneman the only director who is also an employee of Cheviot Financial Corp or Cheviot Savings Bank received

$17000 in compensation for board membership on Cheviot Savings Bank Mr Linneman did not receive any

compensation for committee membership

Directors Deferred Compensation Plan Cheviot Savings Bank adopted effective March 31 2003
directors deferred compensation plan as an additional benefit for its directors Each

person who was member of

the board on March 31 2003 became participant in the plan on such date Any subsequent member of the board

shall become participant in the plan only if he or she is member of the Board of Directors on the last day of the

first plan year that ends after the date on which he or she completes ten years of service which such date is

designated as his or her participation date in the plan After becoming participant under the plan person remains

participant until the entire balance of his or her account under the plan has been paid or forfeited under the terms

of the plan

The plan provides that upon the later of the participants 65th birthday or ii the earlier of the date

on which the participant is no longer member of the Board of Directors or the participants 70th birthday the

participant will be entitled to retirement benefit in the amount of $11400 per year payable for ten years

participant will have the right within 30 days ofjoining the plan to elect to be paid the retirement benefit above in

the form of single cash lump sum distribution If change in control occurs after the commencement of

participants retirement benefit any remaining installment payments will be paid in the form of single cash lump

sum distribution within 30 days following the effective date of the change in control In the event participant is

entitled to receive the retirement benefit in the form of single cash lump sum distribution such benefit will be

determined using discount rate of 7% compounded annually

Cheviot Savings Bank recorded an expense of approximately $21000 for the directors deferred

compensation plan for the
year ended December 31 2008

participant shall forfeit the entire balance of his or her account and any right to future payment of plan

benefit if he or she violates certain standards of conduct as set forth in the plan

Certain Transactions With Related Persons

Cheviot Savings Banks current policy is that no loans are to be extended to directors or executive officers

of Cheviot Savings Bank without the approval of Cheviot Savings Banks Board of Directors Current directors

officers and employees are eligible for any type of credit offered by Cheviot Savings Bank Federal regulations

permit executive officers and directors to participate in loan programs that are available to other employees as long

as the director or executive officer is not given preferential treatment compared to other participating employees In

accordance with banking regulations such loans to directors are made on substantially the same terms as those

available to Cheviot Savings Banks employees Loans made to directors or executive officers including any

modification of such loans must be approved by majority of disinterested members of the Board of Directors As
of December 31 2008 there were total of ten loans to directors/officers of Cheviot Savings Bank with total

balance of approximately $1.5 million The loans made to directors and executive officers were made in the

ordinary course of business and did not involve more than normal risk of collectibility Any future loans made to

any directors executive officers officers or employees of Cheviot Savings Bank will be made under the same terms

and conditions

All transactions involving related parties require the approval of full Board of Directors

Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits company from extending credit

arranging for the extension of credit or renewing an extension of credit in the form of personal loan to an officer

or director of the company There are several exceptions to this general prohibition including loans made by an

FDIC insured depository institution that is subject to the insider lending restrictions of the Federal Reserve Act All

loans to our directors and officers comply with the Federal Reserve Act and the Federal Reserve Boards Regulation

and therefore are excepted from the prohibitions of Section 402
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PROPOSAL 2- RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee requests that shareholders ratify the Audit Committees selection of Clark Schaefer

Hackett Co to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December

31 2009 Representatives of Clark Schaefer Hackett Co will be present at the Annual Meeting and will have an

opportunity to make statement if they so desire and to respond to questions by shareholders

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR THE RATIFICATION OF THE

SELECTION OF CLARK SCHAEFER HACKETT CO AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTING FIRM

On July 10 2007 Cheviot Financial Corp engaged Clark Schaefer Hackett Co as its independent

registered public accounting firm replacing Grant Thornton LLP Cheviot Financial Corp.s engagement of Clark

Schaefer Hackett Co has been approved by our Audit Committee On July 10 2007 our Audit Committee

elected to terminate the engagement of Grant Thornton LLP as its independent registered public accounting firm

The report
of Grant Thornton LLP on our consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2006 contained no adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and was not qualified or modified

as to uncertainty audit scope or accounting principles

During the year ended December 31 2006 and in connection with the audit of our financial statements for

such period as well as the interim period subsequent to the most recent fiscal
year

end and through July 10 2007

there were no disagreements between us and Grant Thornton LLP on any matter of accounting principles or

practices financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure which if not resolved to the satisfaction of

Grant Thornton LLP would have caused Grant Thornton LLP to make reference to such matter in connection with

its audit reports on our fmancial statements

During the two most recent fiscal
years

and subsequent interim periods prior to engaging Clark Schaefer

Hackett Co neither Cheviot Financial Corp nor anyone on our behalf consulted Clark Schaefer Hackett Co

regarding either the application of accounting principles to specific transaction either completed or proposed

or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on our financial statements No written report or oral advice was

provided that Clark Schaefer Hackett Co concluded was an important factor considered by us in reaching

decision as to the accounting auditing or financial reporting issue or ii any matter that was either the subject of

disagreement as defmed in Item 304aliv of Regulation S-K or reportable event as described in Item

304alv of Regulation
S-K

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed to us or Cheviot Savings Bank for the years
ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 by Clark Schaefer Hackett Co

2008 2007

Audit Fees 36150 15700

Audit Related Fees 16635 8000

Tax Fees 7250

All Other Fees

60035 23700
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The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed to us or Cheviot Savings Bank for the years ended

December 31 2007 by Grant Thornton

2007

Audit Fees 48200
Audit Related Fees 14544

Tax Fees 5213

67957

Fees paid to Grant Thornton in 2008 consist of$10000 for preparation of their consent letter and $3100
for amended tax return preparation

Audit Fees consist of the aggregate fees billed for each of the last two fiscal years for professional services

rendered by our principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial statements and review of fmancial

statements included in our Form l0-Q or services that are normally provided by our accountant in connection with

statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years

Audit-Related Fees consist of fees for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the

performance of the audit or review of our fmancial statements This category includes fees related to audit and attest

services not required by statute or regulations acquisitions and investments and consultations concerning financial

accounting and reporting standards

Tax Fees consist of fees for professional services for tax compliance tax advice and tax planning These

services include assistance regarding federal state and international tax compliance return preparation tax audits

and customs and duties

All Other Fees During 2008 and 2007 no fees were billed for products and services provided by the

principal accountant other than the services reported above

The Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of non-audit services is compatible with

maintaining the independence of Clark Schaefer Hackett Co and has concluded that it is

Pre-approval Policies and Procedures In accordance with rules adopted by the SEC in order to implement

requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the Audit Committees charter all audit and audit-related

services and all permitted non-audit work performed by the independent registered public accounting firmClark

Schaefer Hackett Co must be pre-approved by the Audit Committee including the proposed fees for such work
The Audit Committee has adopted policies and procedures pursuant to which audit audit-related and tax services

and all permissible non-audit services are pre-approved and is infonned of each service actually rendered that was

approved through its pre-approval process The Audit Committee pre-approved 100% of the audit related fees and

tax fees described above during the fiscal years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

OTHER MATTERS

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Exchange Act requires our directors executive officers and
persons who own more

than 10% of registered class of our equity securities to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with

the SEC Directors executive officers and greater than 10% shareholders are required by regulations of the SEC to

furnish us with copies of all Section 16a reports they file Such reports are filed on Forms and under the

Exchange Act Based solely on our review of the copies of such forms received by us we believe that during the

year ended December 31 2008 all such persons complied on timely basis with the filing requirements of

Section 16a
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Shareholder Proposals for Next Years Annual Meeting

Shareholder proposals
intended for inclusion in next years Proxy Statement should be sent to the

Executive Secretary Cheviot Financial Corp 3723 Glenmore Avenue Cheviot Ohio 45211 and must be received

by November 25 2009 Any such proposal must comply with Rule 14a-8 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the

Exchange Act Any shareholder who intends to propose any other matter to be acted upon at the 2010 annual

meeting of shareholders without inclusion of such proposal in the Companys proxy statement must inform the

company no later than 30 days prior to our 2010 annual meeting date If notice is not provided by that date the

persons named in our proxy for the 2010 annual meeting will be allowed to exercise their discretionary authority to

vote upon any such proposal
without the matter having been discussed in the proxy statement for the 2010 annual

meeting All shareholder proposals and notices must also meet all requirements set forth in our Charter and Bylaws

Other Matters to Come Before the Meeting

At the time this Proxy Statement was released for distribution on March 18 2009 we knew of no other

matters that might be presented for action at the meeting If any other matters properly come before the meeting it is

intended that the voting shares represented by proxies will be voted with respect thereto in accordance with the

judgment of the persons voting them

Miscellaneous/Financial Statements

We will bear the cost of solicitation of proxies We will reimburse brokerage firms and other custodians

nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses
incurred by them in forwarding proxy materials to the beneficial

owners of our common stock In addition to solicitations by mail our directors officers and regular employees may

solicit proxies personally or by telegraph or telephone without additional compensation

Annual Report to Shareholders

Our Annual Report to Shareholders for the year ended December 31 2008 has been made available to

shareholders concurrently with this Proxy Statement but is not incorporated into this Proxy Statement and is not to

be considered part of these proxy solicitation materials If you would like copy of the Annual Report to

Shareholders or copy of our Form 10-K that has been filed with the SEC including financial statements

and schedules please write to Kimberly Siener Investor Relations Cheviot Financial Corp 3723 Glenmore

Avenue Cheviot Ohio 45211 and we will send copies of each to you free of charge The exhibits to the Form

10-K will be furnished for fee that is reasonably related to our cost of furnishing such items You may also

make such request by email to fulflhlmentdrtcocorn and by inserting your Shareholder Control Number in

the subject line

Proxy Statements for Shareholders Sharing the Same Household Mailing Address

If shareholders residing at the same household mailing address are currently receiving multiple copies of

our communications but would like to receive only one in the future please send written notice to The Registrar and

Transfer Company at the below address In the written notice please indicate the names of all accounts in your

household and The Registrar and Transfer Company will forward the appropriate forms for completion

The Registrar and Transfer Company

10 Commerce Drive

Cranford New Jersey 07016-3506

Any shareholders participating in the householding program will however continue to receive separate

notice card or voting instruction card for each account
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Shareholder Communications with the Board of Directors

Shareholders who wish to communicate with the Board specified individual directors and non-

management directors should send any communications to the Executive Secretary Cheviot Financial Corp 3723

Glenmore Avenue Cheviot Ohio 45211 and identify the intended recipient All communications addressed will be

forwarded to the identified
person or persons

By Order of the Board of Directors

James Williamson

Executive Secretary

March 18 2009
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